NAGAR & NAVADA
CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

To,
The Members of
IMPERIAL HOSPITAIL AND RESEARCH CENTRE LIMITED

Opinion

We have audited the accompanying Standalone financial statements of M/s. IMPERIAL
HOSPITAL AND RESEARCH CENTRE LIMITED (“the Company”) which comprises the
Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2022, the Statement of Profit and Loss (including other
Comprehensive Income), the Statement of Changes in Equity and Statement of Cash flows for
the year then ended, and notes to the financial statements, including a summary of significant
accounting policies and other explanatory information.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to
us, the aforesaid standalone financial statements give the information required by the
Companies Act, 2013 in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity
with the Indian Accounting Standards prescribed under section 133 of the Act read with the
Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended, (“Ind AS”) and with the
accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at
March 31, 2022, and its profit, total comprehensive income, its cash flows and the changes in
equity for the year ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs) specified under
section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013. Our responsibilities under those Standards are
further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Standalone Tinancial
Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with the
Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India together with the
ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements under the
provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Rules thereunder, and we have fulfilled our
other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the Code of Ethics.
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide
a basis for our opinion.

Responsibility of Management for the Standalone Financial Statements

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of the
Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) with respect to the preparation of these standalone financial
statements that give a true and fair view of the financial position, financial performance,
including other comprehensive income, cash flows and changes in equity of the Company in
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accordance with, the Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) prescribed under section 133 of
the Act and accounting principles generally accepted in India.

This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance
with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the assets of the Company and for
preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of
appropriate implementation and maintenance of accounting policies; making judgments and
estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of
adequate internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy
and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of
the financial statement that give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement,
whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company’s
ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going
concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends
to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the company’s financial reporting
process.

Auditor’s Responsibility for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a
whole, are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an
auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance
but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a
material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are
considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to
influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain
professional scepticism throughout the audit. We also:

¢ Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to
those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from
fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion,
forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

* Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design
audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of
the Companies Act, 2013, we are also responsible for expressing our opinion on
whether the company has adequate internal financial controls system in place and the
operating effectiveness of such controls.

* Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by management.

* Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty



exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s
ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists,
we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in
the financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion.
Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our
auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to
cease to continue as a going concern.

* Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the
planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant
deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with
relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all
relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence,
and where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those
matters that were of most significance in the audit of the standalone financial statements of
the current period and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our
auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or
when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be
communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably
be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1. Asrequired by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2016 (“the Order”), issued by the
Central Government of India in terms of sub-section (11) of section 143 of the Companies
Act, 2013, we give in the “Annexure A” statement on the matters specified in paragraphs
3 and 4 of the Order, to the extent applicable.

2. As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report that:

a. We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the
best of our knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit.

b. In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the
Company so far as it appears from our examination of those books.

c. The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss including Other
Comprehensive Income, Statement of Changes in Equity and the Cash Flow
Statement dealt with by this Report are in agreement with the books of account.

d. In our opinion, the aforesaid Ind AS financial statements comply with the Indian
Accounting Standards (Ind AS) specified under Section 133 of the Act.

e. On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on 31st
March, 2022 taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is



disqualified as on 31st March, 2022 from being appointed as a director in terms of
Section 164 (2) of the Act.

f. With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial
reporting of the Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to

our separate Report in Annexure B.

g With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in
accordance with Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in
our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations
given to us:

The Company has disclosed the impact of pending litigations on its financial
position in its Ind AS financial statements - Refer Note 3.2 to the financial
statements.

The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts
for which there were any material foreseeable losses.

There has been no delay in transferring amounts, required to be transferred, to the
Investor Education and Protection Fund by the company.

For Nagar & Navada
Chartered Accountants

(Partner)
Membership No: 229158
UDIN: 22229158AISYFR7259
Place: Bangalore
Date: 30-04-2022



ANNEXURE ~ “A” To the Independent Auditor’s Report

The Annexure Referred to in the Auditor’s report to the IMPERIAL HOSPITAL AND
RESEARCH CENTRE LIMITED (“the Company”), for the year ended 31st March 2022. We
report that:

il

iii.

On the basis of such checks as we considered appropriate and according to the
information and explanation given to us during the course of our audit, we report that:

(a) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars including
quantitative details and situation of Property, Plant and Equipment.

(b) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars of Intangible
assets.

(c) The Company has a policy of physical verification of its Property, Plant and
Equipment, which in our opinion, is reasonable having regard to the size of the
Company and the nature of its assets.

(d) The title deeds of immovable properties disclosed in the financial statements are
held in the name of the company.

(e) The Company has not revalued its Property, Plant and Equipment (including Right-
of-Use assets) and intangible assets during the year.

(f) As explained to us, the company is not holding any benami property as defined
under the Benami Transactions (Prohibition) Act, 1988 and accordingly no
proceedings have been initiated or are pending against the company.

The company is a service-oriented company primarily rendering medical/hospital
services. The inventory carried, being in the nature of medical consumables, utilities,
surgical consumables, patient implants, etc. held by the company is for use in the
delivery of these services.

(a) Asexplained to us, the inventories have been physically verified by the management
at reasonable intervals during the year.

(b) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the
procedures of physical verification of inventories followed by the management are
reasonable and adequate in relation to the size of the company and nature of its
business.

(¢) The discrepancies noticed on verification of inventory as compared to books records
which has been properly dealt with in the books of accounts were not material.

the company has been sanctioned (unutilized) working capital (Cash credit) limits for
rupees Fifteen crores from Axis Bank Ltd. The company is required to submit
statements/ returns like Financial Follow-up Report-1 (“FFR-1”), Stock and Book debt
statements for every month as per the sanctioned terms of advance. Based on our
verification of statements furnished to us, we have noticed the following discrepancies



between returns/statements submitted to bank and books of accounts for the

respective quarter:
(Rs. In Lakhs)
For the | Name of returns/ | Amount Amount  as | Difference | Management Comments on
quarter statements disclosed in | per books of | (Rs.) discrepancies
ended submitted to bank | returns/ accounts/Trial
statements | balance (Rs.)
(Rs.)
Book Debt Timing dif(erence due to credit
30-Jun-2021 state 3,785 3460 325 | notes/Provision booked, post
ment ARE
submission of statement to bank
Book Debt Timing difference due to credit
30-Sep-2021 ke 3,410 3,474 (64) | notes/Provision booked, post
ment e
submission of statement to bank
Book Debt Timing difference due to credit
31-Dec-2021 3,409 3,568 (159) | notes/Provision booked, post
statement gty
submission of statement to bank
Unpaid stock Advance adjustment in Trade
31-Dec-2021 | details (Trade 1,314 1,255 59 | payables, post submission of
payables for goods) statement to bank
Timing difference due to credit
31-Mar:2022 | BOOk Debt 3,321 3,193 128 | notes/Provision booked, post
statement by
submission of statement to bank
Unpaid stock Advance adjustment in Trade
31-Mar-2022 | details (Trade 1,255 1,202 53 | payables, post submission of
payables for goods) statement to bank

iv.  During the year, the Company has not made investments in, not provided any

Vi.

vii.

guarantee or security and not granted any loans or advances, either secured or
unsecured to companies, firms, Limited Liability Partnerships or any other parties
covered in the register maintained under section 189 of the Companies Act 2013.

In respect of loans, investments and guarantees to which the provision of section 185
and 186 of the Companies Act, 2013 have been complied with.

The Company has not accepted any deposits from the public. Therefore, the directives
issued by RBI and the provision of section 73 to Sec 76 or any other provisions of the
Companies Act, 2013 and the rules framed there under do not apply. Accordingly,
paragraph 3(v) of the Order is not applicable.

Maintenance of Cost records specified under sub-section (1) of Section 148 of the
Companies Act, 2013 is applicable and have been maintained.

According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company is regular in
depositing undisputed statutory dues including provident fund, employees’ state
insurance, income tax, GST, custom duty, cess and other material statutory dues
applicable to it.

(a) According to the information and explanations given to us and to the best of our
knowledge, no undisputed amounts payable in respect of income tax, wealth tax,
GST, service tax and cess were in arrears, as at 31st March 2022 for a period of more
than six months from the date they became payable.



xi.

xii.

(b) According to the information and explanation given to us, there are no dues of
income tax, wealth tax, service tax, sales tax, GST and custom duty, excise duty and
cess, which have not been deposited on account of any dispute.

There are no transactions not recorded in the books of account but have been
surrendered or disclosed as income during the year in the tax assessments under the
Income Tax Act, 1961

Based on our audit procedures generally accepted and on the information and
explanation given to us by the management, we report the following:

(a) The Company has not defaulted in repayment of dues with regard to loans or
borrowings.

(b) The company is not declared as wilful defaulter by any bank or financial institution
or other lender

(c) the company has availed term loan and said term loans have been used for the
purpose for which they have been obtained.

(d) the company has not utilised the short-term funds raised for long term purposes.

(e) Asexplained to us, the company has not taken any taken any funds from any entity
or person on account of or to meet the obligations of its subsidiaries, associates or
joint ventures.

(f) the company has not raised any loans during the year on the pledge of securities
held in its subsidiaries, joint ventures or associate companies.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the
Company has not raised monies by way of initial public offer or further public offer
(including debt instruments).

The Company has not made any preferential allotment/private placement of the
shares during the year and therefore clause 3(xiv) of the Order is not applicable to the
Company.

xiii. ~ Based on our audit procedures generally accepted and, on the information, and

explanation given to us by the management, we report the following:

(a) we have neither came across any instance of fraud on or by the Company, noticed
or reported during the year, nor we have been informed of such case by the
management.

(b) There is no occurrence of fraud required to be reported by us in the form ADT-4
pursuant to sub-section (12) of section 143 of the Companies Act, with the Central
Government.

(c) The company has not received any whistle-blower complaints during the year.
The Company is not a Nidhi Co, and therefore clause 3(xii) of the Order is not applicable
to the company.



xvii.

Xix.

xxii,

xxiii.

All transactions with the related parties are in compliance with Section 188 and Section
177 of the Companies Act,2013 and the details thereof have been disclosed in the
Financials Statements etc. as required by the Indian Accounting standards (Ind AS) and
Companies Act,2013.

In our opinion and considering the Internal Audit reports furnished to us, we conclude
that the company is having the adequate internal system commensurate with its size
and nature of its business.

According to the explanations and information’s given to us, the Company has not
entered into any non-cash transaction with directors/ persons connected with him and
therefore clause 3(xv) of the order is not applicable to the company.

The company is not a financial institution. Hence it is not required to be registered under
Section 45-1A of the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934 and accordingly, the provisions of
clause 3(xvi) of the Order are not applicable to the company.

According to the explanations and information’s given to us, the Company has not
incurred any cash losses during the financial year and preceding financial year.

There was no resignation of statutory auditors of the company during the year.

On the basis of the financial ratios, ageing and expected dates of realisation of financial
assets and payment of financial liabilities, other information accompanying the financial
statements and our knowledge of the Board of Directors and management plans as
explained to us; we are of the opinion that there is no material uncertainty exists as on
the date of our audit report and the company is capable of meeting its liabilities existing
at the date of balance sheet as and when they fall due within a period of one year from
the balance sheet date.

The company has no outstanding amount unspent on CSR activities as on 31% March
2022 and accordingly the provisions of clause 3(xx) of the Order are not applicable to
the company

The company is a subsidiary company and does not require to prepare any consolidated
financial statements and accordingly the provisions of clause 3(xxi) of the Order are not
applicable to the company.

For Nagar & Navada
Chartered Accountants

CA SandhyaP N

(Partner)
Membership No: 229158

UDIN: 22229158AISYFR7259

Date: 30-04-2022




ANNEX - “B" To the Independent Auditor”

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub section 3 of Section 143
of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”)

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of IMPERIAL
HOSPITAL AND RESEARCH CENTRE LIMITED (“the Company”), as of March 31, 2022
in conjunction with our audit of the financial statements of the Company for the year ended
on that date.

Management Responsibility for Internal Financials Controls

The Company’s management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal
financial controls based on materiality level. These responsibilities include the design,
implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financials controls that were operating
effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence
to company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds
and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely
preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the Companies Act, 2013.

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls over
financial reporting based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the
Guidance note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting (the
“Guidance Note”) and the Standards on Auditing, issued by ICAI and deemed to be
prescribed under section 143(10) of the Companies Act, to an audit of Internal Financial
Controls and, both issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. Those Standards
and the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and
perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial
controls over financial reporting was established and maintained and if such controls
operated effectively in all material aspects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the
internal financial controls system over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness.
Our audit of internal financial reporting included obtaining an understanding of internal
controls over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing
and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the
assessed risk. The Procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgement, including the
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to
fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide
a basis for our audit opinion on the company’s internal financial controls system over financial

reporting.
Meaning of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting

A company’s internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to
provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the



preparation of financial statements for external purpose in accordance with generally
accepted accounting principles. A Company’s Internal Financial reporting includes those
policies and procedures that:

(1) Pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly
reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company;

(2) Provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit
preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting
principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in
accordance with authorizations of management and directors of the company; and

(3) Provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized
acquisition, use or disposition of the company’s assets that could have a material effect
on the financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over the financial reporting,
including the possibility of conclusion or improper management override of controls, material
misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any
evaluation of the internal financial controls over financial reporting may become inadequate
because of the changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or
procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion, the Company has in all material aspects, an adequate internal financial
controls system over financial reporting were operating effectively as at March 31st, 2022
based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company
considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit
of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the ICAL

For Nagar & Navada
Chartered Accountant

Membership No: 229158
UDIN: 22229158AISYFR7259

Place: Bangalore
Date: 30-04-2022



perial Hospital & Research Centre Limited

Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2022

(Al amcunts ara 0 INR unless otherwise stated)

As at As at
Note No 31-Mar-22 31-Mar-21
ASSETS
Non-current assets
(a) Property, plant and equipment 5 189,47 63,373 1,92,52,98,715
(b) Right of Use of Asset 5 2,851,366 3,09,35,463
(c) Capital work-in-progress 5 - 60,84,000
(d) Other intangible assets 6 38,80,572 68,14 685
(e) Financial assets
(i) Investments (others) 7 5,00,000 5,00.000
(ii) Other financial assets 10 75042685 7,45,72 685
(f) Deferred tax assets (Net) 1 - -
(@) Non-Current tax assets (Net) 20 18,21,22,293 8,05,58,102
(h) Other non-current assets 13 4960730 63,60,581
Total non - current assets 2,18,97,81,019 213,11,24,230
Current assets
(a) Inventories 12 5,54 96,595 3,43,08,855
(b) Financial assets
(1) Trade receivables 8 31.74 .00 453 31,29,55,467
(ii) Cash and cash equivalents 9 16.36,27,304 13,21,40 456
(ii) Other financial assets 10 2,51,40,059 3,86,38,978
(c) Other current assets 13 6,30,15,673 5,16,84,141
Total current assets 62,46,80,083 56,97,27,897
Total assets 2,81,44,61,102 2,70,08,52,127
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Equity
(a) Equity share capital 14 29,94 50,000 29,94 50,000
(b) Other equity 15 1,26,25 41,522 95,82 45,863
Total equity 1,56,19,91,522 1,25,76,95,863
Liabilities
Non-current liabilities
(a) Financial liabilities
(i) Borrowings 16 45,00,00,000 58.81,12,500
(i) Other financial liabilities 18 6,67.79.634 6,82.49.923
{b) Provisions 19 3,80,53,052 3.89,37.195
(c) Deferred tax liabilities (Net) 11 £,58,98 464 54.38.665
Total non-current liabilities 62,07,31,151 70,07,38,283
Current liabilities
(a) Financial liabilities
(1) Borrowings 16 -
{ii) Trade payables 17 - -
Total Outstanding dues of micro enterprises and 4,52,80.370 3.80.86.796
small enterprises
Total Outstanding dues of creditors other than 38,49.16.050 48.61.28729
micro enterprises and small enterprises
f1ii) Other financial liabilities 18 12,72,39.861 16,68.24 914
{b) Provisions 18 4,45 21 194 2,59,01,927
(d) Other liabilities 21 2,97,80.955 25475614
Total current liabilities 63,17,38,430 74,24,17,981
Total liabilities 1,25,24,69,580 1,44,31 56,264
Total equity and liabilities 2,81,44,61,102 2,70,08,52,127

See accompanying notes to the financial stalements

In terms of our report attached
For Nagar & Navada
Chartered Account

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

Place: Bengaluru
Date : 30-Apr-2022

Dr. Vigar Syed
Director

Sangita Reddy
Director

SufatAgfawal Anilﬁras%o

Chief Financial Officer Company Secretary




mperial Hospital & Research Centre Limited

Statement of Profit and Loss for the year ended March 31, 2022

(AF amounts ara in INR unless ctherwise staled)

Year ended Year ondedﬂ
Note No. 31-Mar-22 31-Mar-21
Revenue from Operations 22 3.12,06 43,654 2,30,54.28.788
Other Income 23 1.51,69.531 1.43.17.601
Total Income 3,13,58,13,185 2,31,97.46,389
Expenses
Cost of materiais consumed 88,03.44,051 54,94,28 243
Changes in inventory of stock-in-trade (2.11.87.740) 1.18,73,088
Employee benefit expense 24 56,59.78 675 50.80,45,700
Finance costs 25 6.92 42 966 8,07,50,903
Depreciation and amortisation expense 26 13,47 .44 278 16,69,63,788
Other expenses 27 1,06,10.52 940 88.41,09 982
Total expenses 2,69,01,75,171 2,20,12,81,704
Profit/(Loss) before exceptional items and tax 44,56,38,014 11,84,64,685
|Exceptional ltems 23
Profit/(Loss) before tax 44,56,38,014 11.84,64,685
Tax expense
{1) Current tax 28 7.82.85.117 24843413
(2) Deferred tax 28 6,12,16.174 1,04,25.348
13.95.01.291 3.52,68,761
Profit/(Loss) for the period 30.61,36,723 8,31,95924
Other Comprehensive Income
Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss
Remeasurements of the defined benefit liabilities / (asset) 25,97 440 (47,74,897)
Income tax relating to items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss (7.56,375) 13,90.450
Total comprehensive income for the period 30,42 95,658 8,65,80371
Profit for the year 30,61,36,723 8,31,95924
Other comprehensive income for the year 18,41,065 (33,84 447)
Total Comprehensive income 30,42,95,658 8,65,80,371
Earnings per equity share (for continuing operation): 30
Basic (in Rs.) 10.2 29
|Diiuted (in Rs.) 10.2 29

See accompanying notes to the financial statements

In terms of our report attached.
For Nagar & Navada
Chartered Accounta

Date ; 30-Apr-2022

Sangita Reddy

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

Partner Director
M. No 229158
Sdpe
Anil Prdsad Sahoo
Place: Bengaluru Chief Financial Officer Company Secretary




Imperial Hospital and Research Centre Limited

Cash Flow Statement as on March 31, 2022

(Amcunts in INR uniass otheneese $ised)

Year Ended 318! Year Ended 31st
PARTICULARS March 2022 March
Cash flow from Operating Activities
|Profit for the year 30,81,36,723 8,31,95,924
Adjustments for:
Other Comprehensive Income (25,97 440) 47,74 897
Depreciation and amortisation expensa 134744278 16.69.83 788
Income lax expense 13.95.01.261 3,52 68,761
Loss on Sale of Property Plant & Equipment 6243782 54 63023
Finance costs-Lease 61.24 505 65.52,261
Finance cosls-TL 4.88 97 009 6.24 37 306
Interest from Banks/others (50.870) -
Operating Profit before working capital changes 33,28,62,855 28,14,80,036
Adjustments for (increase)ldecrease in operating assets
Inventones (2,11,87.740) 1,18,73,088
Trade recenvables {44 44 4986) 10,56,86,279
Other financial assets - Non current (4,70,000) 6,000
Other financial assets - Current 13458919 (1,45 46,354)
Other non-current assats {17,84,49.457) 1,74,10,059
Other curent assets (1,13,31,532) (2.35,62,300)
{20,23,84,796) 9,68,66,731
Adjustments for Increase/(decrease) In operating liabliities
Trade payables (9,40,19,105) (6,77,24,007)
Other financial kabilties - Non Current (14,70,289) (13,45801)
Other fmancial ¥abiitios - Cumrent (3,56,51,751) (10,36,71 887)
Provisions 17735124 49,58 631
Other current liabiities 43,05,341 1,15.25,164
{10,91,00,680) (15,62,57,639)
{Net cash generated from operating activities (A) 32,75,14,102 30,52,85,052
Cash flow from Investing Aclvitles
Purchase of Property plant & equipment (9,92,30,509) (8,39,45578)
Proceeds from sale of Property plant & equipment 2,20,002 508,123
Imerest received 50,970 .
Net cash used In Investing Activities (B) (9,89,59,537) (8,34,37 455)
Cash flow from Financing Activities
Proceeds from Borrowings - 2.07.00.000
Payments lowards lease liabdity (74,70,707) {1.39 47 809)
Repayment of Borrowings (14,07,00,000) (12,00,00.000)
Finance costs-TL (4,88,97.009) 6.24,37.306)
Net cash used In Financing Activities (C) (19,70,67,716) (17.56,84,915)
Nat Increase In cash and cash equivalents (A+8+C) = (D) 314,85 849 4.61 .62 682
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year (E) 132140458 853877774
(Cash ang cash equivalents at the end of the year (D) «(E) 16,3627 304 13 21 40 456
Net Change in Cash and Cash Equivalents 3,14,86,849 4,61,62,682
In terms of our report attachea. For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

For Nagar & Navada

V-

Sangta Reday Or. Vigar Syed
Director Director
; (ohs
Agrawsl Anl Prasad Sahco

Place: Bengaluru Chief Financial Officer Company Secretary

Date - 30-Apr-2022
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Statement of Unaudited Resulls for e quanar and three monhs endéd March 31, 2022

{Amscunt in Rs.}
Yeur o
Three Three Figures
ate No, | Three months Excded |~ e Endded Wonths Ended Provice D Vi it
31 Mae22 31-Dec-21 I Marat 31-Mar 21 gm‘
Reverue from Cperstons el 72,82,14,917 128067420 nasrias 3120643654 2305420780 2305428 788
Ottt Incoma 23 5.60,004 19,070,001 4178508 1.3168.931 14317601 1,43,17,601
Total income 73,02,08 621 42,80,13,518 167 51390 313,58,13,188 2319746389 131,97 45,399
Exporses
Coat of materis¥s cormumed 2028 89954 2100529 V8.4 070 28,03 44 061 545426263 54 94 28 243
Chargees i vemery of Sbock in-trage (1.45.02 553} {32 88 50} 1L (2.11.87.740) 11875068 11873088
Empioyes baneht sxperms 24 129663827 13,45,92.246 125813010 5659 78675 50.80 45.700 20,80 45 10
¥ ranca cooix = 1,4882605 ARERLY -] 188,2877 65242 5086 8,07 50903 80750900
Dwpreciation and amotsason expense r3 33035320 13976837 I 4498 1347 44278 166953708 16,6983 188
Other expareas n 254393433 28.74.41.370 7348 1 542 1,06,10,52,940 8841 58 502 85 41 99 962
[ Total axpensas 66,03 60,607 0252318 §9,53.62, 867 25987617 2200281704 2204281704
| Profi\Loss) before sxcoptionsl Sems and s TAEAB 014 WITH 20 12,08,67,623 44,56 3 014 112454588 118484 885
Excepsonal Hems 2
ProfitLoss) bafore tax T840 004 WTaim 12,0887 523 44,56 38 014 19,84 84 505 1124 84 885
Tax oxpacen
(1) Current txe kL] 12254 445 28526388 24843413 78285117 24843413 24843412
(2] Dwferred e 28 201,180,324 18710472 11178606 81216174 104,25, 348 | 10425248
1.0.72,140 43217 360 36022015 139501200 1,52.64,761 J8288.06
Profit|Loss| for the panocd - 4,74,75,245 10,4543 843 BABBS S04 30613672) 13198924 83135824
Othwr Comprataniive NCome
itees that will not be reclassified to profit of loss
Ramasmswnaths of Pu defedd DeneM babiities | (ssnet] 2587440 (47 74 287) 57480 147 74,897y 147,74, B57)
Inceme Lax relatng % dems hhat wil not be recissssfed lo profl of kes (7 58.375) 1350450 I‘I.SGEE] 13,50 430 13,95 450
Tetal comprehensive Income for the pariod 45634180 10.45,41 843 0,32 49,951 304296 558 85680371 88552371
Proft for e pear CECRESTEY 104543 842 8,40,69.504 1061 38,723 83155524 BI1 8592
| Other comprehaneiee NComae 4or P yem 1841065 153,54 447) 13,414,055 (1334 447) (3324 447}
| Todal Comprehens ive income 4,56 34,180 104543043 8,62,43,951 30,42,95,658 84520371 86580371
| Eamings per squity share {Tor contiwing cperation|: » -
Basio (0 Rs) * 152 143 245 10.16 FL 283
Dikgad (in Ra.Y" 152 148 ke ) 0.6 2 18
/
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General Information
Imperial Hospital & Research Centre Limited (the Company’) is a public Company incorporated in india. The address of its registered office and prncipal piace of
b\mhdbdondhmunroduwmlolmmnlnpon.ThcmammdmCanmblommmdmawsnummwmm,
detection, diagnosis, treatment and rehabilitation of the patients affected by cancer and to carry out, encourage, aid and assist in the establishment of research
centre, particularty for cancer diseases, The other activities of the Company include enhance the quality of life of patients by providing comprehensive, high-quality
hospital services on a cost-effective basis, operation of multidisciplinary private hospitals, clinics, diagnostic centres.

Application of new and revised In AS
The company has applied all the applicable In AS notifled by the MCA,

Significant accounting policies
Statement of compliance

The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with In ASs notified under the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015

Upto the year ended March 31, 2016, the Company prepared its financial statements In accordance with the requirements of previous GAAP, which includes
Standards notified under the Companies (Accounting Standards) Rules, 2006. The date of transition to In AS is April 1, 2015. Refer Note 3.21 for the details of first-
time adoption exemptions availed by the Company.

Pravious years figure have been re-groupedire-classified where ever necessary

MWWMMMMWWMMMﬂumMWMnlndlalncluaing Indian Accounting
Standards (In AS) prescribed under the Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with rule 3 of the Companies (Ingian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 as
amended and relevant provisions of the Companies Act, 2013

Accordingly, the Company has prepared these Standalone Financial Staements which comprise the Balance Sheet as at 31 March, 2022, the Statement of Profit
and Loss for the year ended 31 March 2022, the Statement of Cash Flows for the year ended 31 March 2022 and the Statement of Changes in Equity for the year
ended as on that date, and accounting policies and other explanatory information (together hereinafter referred 1o as 'Standalone Financial Statements’ or
“financial statements’).

These financial stalements are approved for issue by the Board of Direclors on 30 Apr 2022

Basis of preparation and presentation

The financial statements have been prepared on the historical cost basis except for cenain financial instruments that are measured at fair values at the end of each
reporting period, as explained in the accounting policies below.

Historical cost is generally based on the fair value of the consideration given in exchange for goods and services,

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid lo transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between markel participants at the
measurement date, regardiess of whether that price is directly observable or estimated using another valuation technique. In estimating the fair value of an asset
or a liability, the Company takes into account the characteristics of the asset or lability if market participants would take those characteristics into account when
pricing the asset or liability at the measwement date. Fair value for measurement andlor disclosure purposes in these financial statements determined on such a
basis, except for, leasing transactions that are within the scope of In AS 116, and measuraments that have some similarities o fair value but are not fair value,
such as net realisable value in In AS 2 or vakue in use in In AS 36.

In addition, for financial reporting purposes, fair value ements are categorised into Level 1, 2, or 3 based on the degree to which the inputs 10 the fair value

measurements are observable and the significance of the inputs to the fair value measurement in its entirety, which are described as follows:
Level 1 inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabifities that the entity can access at the measurement date;

Level 2 inputs are inputs, other than quoted prices included within Levei 1, that are observabie for the assel or liability, either directly or indirectly; and
Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for the asset or kability,

The company has considered the possible effects that may result from the pandemic relating to COVID-1$ on the camying ameunts of Propery, Plant and
Equipment. Investments. Inventories, receivables and other current assets. in deveioping the assumption relating to the possible future uncertainties in the globat
economic condiion because of this pandemic, the company as at the date of approval of these financial results has used the internal and external sources on the
expecied future performance of the company, The company has performed sensitivity analysis on the assumption used and based on currenl estimate expects the

mylmimmdmmﬂmm.buﬁuﬂwmr, COVID12 impact was in Quarter 1 and there is no negative impact in our business.
Also specific disclosures regarding the impact of COVID- 19 have been made wherever necessary.

The Company operates a hospital from a building constructed on a piecs of land which was originally allotted to the company by the Government of Kamataka,
subject to certain terms and Conditicns, During the financial year 2014-15, the Special Deputy Commissioner, Revenue Department, Govemment of Kamataka
happened to issue a notice alleging non compliance of the conditions associated with the allotment of the land for which the company filed appropriate replies
denying &l aliegaticns. The said authority proceeded fo pass an order demanding suender of the land along with the building and other assets as a going
concem in favour of another Government run Hospital, Further, the company received a direction dated 19.04.2018, from the Directorate of Medical Education,
Govenment of Kamataka, demanding handover of the Land along with the building and the operations of the hospital to the designated committee. On receipt of
this notice, the Company approached the Hon. Kamataka High court challenging the action of the authority and questioning the process of justice. The Hon. High
Court of Kamataka was pleased 1o set aside the order passed by the authority and remitted the matter back to the authonty with directions 1o re-consider the
matter in accordance with the law and disposal.

Further, The Under Secretary, Revenue Depariment Government of Kamataka has issued, afresh a show cause notice dated 9th Feb. 2022, seeking objections
form the company for the alleged violation in the conditions of land aliotment. The company, on 7th March 2022 has filed a suitable reply denying all allegations
and has substantiated how it has complied with all the conditions of land allotment and has requested the said authority to drop all further proceedings

There is no further action taken by the Government of Kamataka after the sald replies were submitted, The company, going by the merits and supported by the
legal opinions obtained, is confident that the matter will get resolved in its favour in all respects and all further proceedings will be dropped by the authorities
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for the year ended March 31, 2022

~ (HESS GANETwISt -
The principal accounting policies are set out below.

Revenue recognition

Rendering of services

Healthcare Services

Revenue is recognised upon transfer of control of promised products or services to customers in an amount that refiects the consideration which the company
expects 1o receive in exchange for those products or services, When there is uncertamty on ultimate collectability, revenue recognition is pesiponed until such
uncertainty is resolved.

Revenue s recognised at the transaclion price when each performance obligation is satisfied at a paint in time when inpatient/ outpatients has actually recaived

the service except for few specific services in the dialysis and oncology specialty where the performance obligation is satisfied over a pencd of time.

Revenue primarily comprises fees charged for inpatient and outpatient hospital services. Services include charges for accommodation, Ireatment, medical
professional sarvices, equipment, radiolegy, laboratory materials consumed. Revenue is recorded and recognised during the period in which the hospital service is
provided, based upon the estimated amounts due from patients andior medical funding entities. Unbilled revenue Is recorded for the service where the patients are
not discharged and invoice is not raised for the service.

The service revenues are presented net of related doctor fees, pharmacy, discounts and applicable taxes, in cases where the company is not the primary obligor
and does not have the pricing latitude

Other Services
(i) Other services fes |s recognized on basis of the services rendered and as per the terms of the agreement.

Interest income

Interest income from & financial asset is recognised when it is probable that the economic benefits will flow 1o tha Company and the amount of income can be
measured rellably. inferest income is accrued on a time basis, by reference to the pancipal cutstanding and at the effective interest rale applicable, which is the
rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts through the expecied iife of the financial asset to that asset's net carrying amount on initial recognition,

Rental income
Rental income from the premises rented is recognized on accrual basis as per the terms of the agreement

Leases
The company has applied ind AS 116 using the modified retrospective approach in FY 2019-20

Note on IND AS 116

Ind AS 116 requires lessees o defermine the lease term as the noncancallable period of a lease adjusted with any option 1o extend or {erminate the lease, i the
use of such opticn is reasonably cerain. The Company makes an assessment on the expecled lease lerm on a lease-by-lease basis and thereby assesses
whether it is reasonably cartain that any options 10 extend or terminate 1he contract will be exercised. In evaluating the lease term, the Company considers factors
such as any significant leasehold improvements undertaken over the lease term, costs relating to the termination of the lease and the impontanca of the undertying
assel to the operations taking into account the location of the underlying asset and the availability of suftable atematves. The lease term in fulure periods is
reassessed {0 ensure that the lease term reflects the current economic circumstancas.

Accounting Policy as a lessee under IND AS 116

The Company's lease asset classes primarily consist of leases for land and buildings. The Company assesses whether & contract containg a lease, at inception of
a contracl. A contract is, or contains, a lease if the contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset for a peried of fime in exchange for
cons|deration.

To assess whether a contract conveys the right fo control the use of an identified asset, the Company assessas whather

{1} the contract involves the use of an identfied asset

(i} the Company has substantially all of the economic banafits from use of the asset through the period of the lease and

(it} the Company hes the right 10 direct the use of the assel

At the date of commencement of the lease, the Company recognizes a right-of-use asset ("ROU") and a correspanding lease liability for all lease arrangements in
which It Is a lessee, excapt for leases with a term of twelve months or less {short-term leases) and low value leases. For these short-derm and low value leases,
the Company recognizes the lease payments as a Rent wnder Other expenses Certain lease arrangements inchudes the options to extend or terminate the lease
before the end of the lease ferm. ROU assets and lease liabilities includes these options when it is reasonably cartan that they will be exercised.

The right-of-use assets are initially recognized at cost, which comprises the inial amount of the lease liablity adjusted for any lease payments made at or prior 10
the commencement date of the lease plus any Initial girect costs less any lease incentives. They are subsequently measured al cost less accumulated
depreciation and impaiment losses, Right-of-use assets are deprecialed from the commencement date on a straight-line basis over the shorter of the lease term
and useful [ife of the underlying assel

Right of use assets are evaluated for recoverability whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that their carrying amounts may not be recoverable. For
the purpose of impairment testing, the recoverable amount (1.e. the higher of the fair value less cost to sell and the value-in-use) is determined on an individual
assel basis unless the asset does not generate cash flows that are largely independent of those from other assets. In such cases, the recoverabie amourt is
determined for the Cash Generating Unit (CGU) to which the asset belongs.

The lease liability is inttially measured st amortized cost at the present value of the future lease payments. The lease payments are discounted using the interest
rate implicit in the lease or, if not readily determinable, using the incremental borrowing rates in the country of domicile of these leases. Lease Habilities are
premeasured with a corresponding adjusiment 10 the refated right of use asset if the Company changes is assessment if whether it will exercise an extension or 8
termination option. Lease Eability and ROU asset have been separately presented In the Balance Sheet and lesse payments have been classified as financing
cash flows.

Effective April 1, 2018, the Company adopted Ind AS 116 “Leases” and applied the standard to all lease contracts existing on April 1, 2019 using the modified
retrospeciive method and has taken the cumulative adjustment to retained eamings. on the date of initial application. Consequently, tha Company recorded the
lease liability at the present value of the lease payments discounted at the incremental borrowing rete and the right of use asset at #s carrying amount as o the
standard had been spplied since the commencement date of the |ease. but discounted at the Company's incremental borrowing rate at the date of initial
application. On transition, the adoption of the new standard resulted in recognition of 'Right of Use’ asse and a lease liability. The cumulative effect of applying the
standard was debited to retained eamings, net of taxes. The effect of thus adoption is insignificant on the profit before tax. profit for the period and eamings per
share, Ind AS 116 will result in an Increase In cash inflows from operating activities and an increase in cash outfiows from financing actlvities cn account of lease
payments,
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Forelgn currencies
Transactions In currencies other than the entity's functional curency 1.8, Indian Rupees (INR) (foreign currencies) are recognised at the rates of eéxchange
prevalling at the dates of the transactions. At the end of each reporting pericd, monetary items denominated In foreign currencies are retransiated at the rates
prevailing at that date. Non-monetary items carried at fair value that are denominated in foreign currencies are retransiated at the rates prevailing at the date when
the fair value was determined. Non-monetary tems that are measured in terms of historical cost in a forelgn currency are not retransiated

Emlgadlmmesennmmmyibunsamreoogﬁsedhm“muInlhepeﬂoainwtichmoyanseexoeala:

« exchange differences on foreign currency borrowings relating to sssets under construction for future productive use, which are included in the cost of those
assets when they are regarded as an adjustment to Interest costs on those foreign curency borrowings:

« exchange differences on monetary items receivable from or payable to a foreign operation for which settlement is neither planned nor likely to occur (therefore
forming part of the net investment in the foreign operation), which are recognised Initially in other comprehensive | and reclassified from equity 1o profit or
loss on repayment of the monetary items.

Borrowings and Borrowing costs

Borrowings are recognised initially at fair value, net of fransaction costs incurred Borowings are subsequently stated at amortised cost. Any difference between
the proceeds (net of transaction costs) and the redemption value is recognised in the income statement over the period of the borowings using the effective
interest rate method. Borrowings are classified as current liabifities unless the Company has an unconditional right 10 defer settlement of the liability for at least 12
months afler the reporting date.

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or preduction of qualifying assets. which are assets that necessarlly take a substantial period of
time 1o get ready for their intended use or sale, are added to the cost of those assets, until such time as the assets are substantially ready for their intended use or
sale

Interest income eamed on the temporary investment of specific borrowings pending their expenditure on qualifying assets is deducted from the borrowing costs
eligible for capitalisation.

All other borrawing costs are recognised In profit of [0ss in the period in which they are incurred.

Government grants

Government grants are not recognised until there is reasonable assurance thal the Company will compéy with the conditions attaching 1o them and that the grants
will be received.

Govemment grants are recognised In profit or 10ss on a sysiematic basis over the periods in which the Company recognises as expenses the related costs for
which the grants are intended 1o compensate. Specifically, govemment granis whose primary condition is that the Company should purchase, construct or
otherwise acquire non-current assets are recognised as deferred revenue in the balance sheet and fransferred to profit or loss on & systematic and rational basis
over the useful lives of the refated assets.

Government grants that are receivable as compensation for expenses or losses aiready incurred or for the purpose of giving immediate financlal support 1o the
Company with no future refated costs are recognised In profit or loss in the period in which they become receivable

The benefd of a government joan at a below-market rate of interest is treated 85 & govemment grant, measured as the difference between proceeds received and
the falr value of the loan based on prevailing market interest rates.

Employee benefits

Retirement benefit costs and termination benefits

Paymenis fo defined contribution refirement benefit plans are recognised as an expense when employees have rendered service entitling them to the
condributions,

For defined benefit retirement plans, the cost of providing benefits is determined using the projected unit credit method, with actuarial valuations being carried out
at the end of each annual reporting period. Remeasurement, comprising actuarial gains and losses, the effact of the changes 1o the asset ceiling (if applicable) and
the return on plan assets (excluding net interest), is reflected immediatety In the balance sheet with a charge or credit recognised in other comprehensive income
in the period in which they occur. Remeasurement recognised In other comprehensive income is reflacted Immediately in retained eamings and is not reclassified
to profit or loss. Past service cost is recognised in profit or loss in the period of a plan amendment. Nel interest is calcuiated by applying the discount rate at the
beginning of the period to the net defined banefit Hability or asset, Defined benefit costs are categorised as follows:

= service cost (inchuding curent service cost, past service cost, as well a3 gains and losses on curtailments and satllements).

* not interast axoense or income; and

* Remeasurement

The Company presents the first two components of defined benefit costs in profit or loss in the line item ‘Employee benefits expense’. Curtaliment gains and
losses are accounted for as past service costs.

The retirament benefit obligation recognised in the balance sheet represents the actual deficit or surplus in the Company’s defined benef plans. Any surplus
resulting from this calculation is limited to the present value of any economic bensfits available in the form of refunds from the plans or reductions In future
contributions to the plans.

Short-term and other long-term employee benefits

A lability is recognised for benefils accruing to employees In respect of wages and salaries, annual leave and sick leave in the pericd the related service is
rendered at the undiscounted amount of the benefits expected to be paid in exchanne for that service.

Liabilities recognised in respect of short-term empioyee benefits are measured at the undiscounted amount of the benefits expecied to be paid in exchange for the
related service.

Lisbdlities recognised in respect of other long-term employee benefits are measured at the present valua of the estimated future cash outflows expected to be
made by the Company in respect of services provided by employees up to the reporting date.

Contributions from employees or third parties to defined benefit plans

Discretionary contributions made by employees or third parties reduce service cost upen payment of these contributions 1o the plan

When the formal terms of the plans specify that there will be contributions from empioyees or third parties, the sccounting depends on whedher the contributions
are linked to service, as follows:

- If the contributions are not linked to servicas (e.g. contributions are required to reduce a deficit arising from lesses on plan assets or from acluarial losses), they
are refiected in the Remeasurement of the net defined benefit liability (asset).

- If confributions are linked to services, they reduce service costs. For the amount of contribution that |s dependent on the number of years of service, the Company
reduces service cost by attributing the contributions to pericds of service using the attribution method required by para 70 of Ind AS 19 for the gross benefits. For
the amount of contribution that is independent of the number of years of service, the Company reduces service cost in the pernicd in which the related service is
rendered / reduces service cost by attributing contributions to the employees’ periods of service in accordance with para 70 of Ind AS 19 .
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Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently payable and deferred tax.

Current tax

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the year. Taxable profit differs from ‘profit before 1ax’ as reported in the statement of profit and loss because
of dems of income or expense that are taxable or deductible in other years and items that are never taxable or deductible. The Company’s current tax is calculated
using tax rates that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period

Deferred tax

Deferred 1ax is recognised on temporary differances between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the financial statements and the corresponding tax
bases used in the computation of taxable profit. Deferred tax liabilities are generally recognised for ail taxable temporary differences. Deferred tax assets are
generally recognised for all deductible temporary differences to the extent that # is probable that taxable profits will be available against which those deductible
temporary differences can be utilised. Such deferred tax assets and liabilities are not recognised if the temporary difference arises from the initial recognition
{other than in a business combination) of assets and liabilities in a transaction that affects neither the taxable profit nor the accounting profit.

Deferred tax liabilitles are recognised for taxable temporary differences associated with investments in subsidiaries and associates, and interests in joint ventures,
excapt where the Company Is able to control the reversal of the temporary dilference and it is probable that the porary diffe will not r in the
foreseeable fulure. Deferred tax assets arising from deductible temporary differences associated with such investments and interests are only recognised 1o the
extent that it |s probabie that there will be sufficient taxable profits against which to utilise the benefits of the temporary differences and they are expected 1o
reverse in the foreseeable future.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the end of each reporting period and reduced 10 the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient
taxable profits will be avallabie to allow all or part of the asset to be recovered,

Deferred tax kabiities and assets are measured at the tax rates that are expected 10 apply in the period in which the liability is settled or the asset realised, based
on 1ax rates {and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacled by the end of the reporling pericd.

The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets reflects the tax consequences that would follow from the manner in which the Company expects, at the end
of the reporting period. to recover or settle the camrying amount of its assats and liabilites.

Current and deferred tax for the year
Curent and deferred tax are recognised in profit or loss, except when they relate to flems that are recegnisad In other comprehensive income or direclly in equity,
in which case, the current and deferred tax are also recognised In other comprehensive income or direclly in equity respectively,

Property, plant and equipment
Land and bulidings mainly comprise hospitals and offices. Land and buskdings held for use in the production or supply of goods or services, or for administrative
purposes, are stated in the balance sheet at cost less accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses. Freehold tand Is not deprecisted.

Fixtures, plant and medical equipment are stated at cost less accumulated depracistion and accumulated impalment losses. All repairs and maintenance costs
are charged to the income statement during the financial period in which they are incurred

Properies in the course of construction for production, supply or adminisirative purposes are carried at cost, less any recognisad impairment loss. Cost includes
professional fees and, for qualifying assets, borrowing costs capitalised in accordance with the Company's accounting policy. Such properties are ciassified 1o the
appropriste categories of property, plant and equipment when compieted and ready for intended use. Depreciation of these assets, on the same basis as other
property assets, commences when the assets are ready for their intended use

Depreciation is recognised so as to write off the cost of assets (other than freehold land and properties under construction) less their residual values over thesr
useful lives, using the straight-line method. The estimated useful lives, residusal values and depreciation methed are reviewed at the end of each reporting periad,
with the effect of any changes In estimate ted for on a prospective basis

Assets held under finance leases are depreciated over their expected useful llves on the same basls a3 owned assels. However, when there |s no reasonable
certainty that ownership will be obtained by the end of the lease term, assels are depreciated over the shorter of the lease term and their useful lives,

Estimated useful lives of the assels are as follows:

Buildings (Freehoid) 60 years (also refer note. 4 6)
Medical Equipment 13 years
Asset under finance lease Lease term or useful life whichever is lower
Surgical Instruments 3 Years
Office Equipment 5 years
Furniture and Fixtures 10 years
Plant and Machinery 15 years
Vehicles 8 years
Computers & Servers 3/6 Years
Electrical installation 10 Years

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised upon disposal or when no future economic benefds are expected to arise from the continued use of the
assel. Any gain or loss arising on the disposal or retirement of an item of property, plant and equipment s determined as the difference between the sales
proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and |s recognised in profit or loss,

For transition to Ind AS, the Company has elected to continue with the camrying value of all of ts Property plant & equipment recognised as of April 1, 2015
(transition date) measured as per the previous GAAP and use that camying value as Its deemed cost as of the lransition date.
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Intangible assets

Intangible assets acquired separately

Intangible assets with finite useful lives that are acquired separately are carried at cost less accumulated amortisstion and accumulsted impairment losses.
Amortisation is recognised on a8 straight-line basis over their estimated useful lives. The estimated usaful iife and amortisation method are reviewed &t the end of
each reporting period. with the effect of any changes in estimate being accounted for on & prospective basis. Intangible assats with Ingefinite usetul lives that are
acquired saparately are carried at cost less accumulated Impasment losses.

Derecognition of intangible assets

An intangible asset is derecognised on disposal, or when no fulure economic benefits are expected from use or disposal. Gains or losses arising from
deracognition of an Intangible asset, measured as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the assel, are recognised in profit
or loss when the asset |s derecognised,

Useful lives of intangible assots
Estimated usaful lives of the Inangible assets are as follows:
Software 3 years

Deemed cost on transition to Ind AS
For transition to Ind AS, the Company has elected to continue with the camrying value of all of s intangibie assets recognised as of April 1, 2015 {transition date)
measured as per the previous GAAP and use that carrying value as its deemed cost as of the transition date

Impairment of tangible and intangible assets other than goodwill

At the end of each reporting period, the Company reviews the carrying amounts of ils tangidble and intangible assets 1o determine whether there is any indication
that those assets have suffered an impairment loss. If any such indication exists, the recoverable amount of the asset is estimated in order to determine the extert
of the impairment loss (if any). When  is not possible to estimate the recoverable amount of an individual asset, the Company estimates the recoverable amount
of the cash-generating unit to which the asset belongs. When a reasonable and consistent basis of allocation can be identified, corporate assets are also allocated
to individual cash-generating units, or otherwise they are allocated to the smallest Company of cash-generating units for which a reasonable and consistent
sllocation basle can be identified.

Recoverabie amount is the higher of fair value less costs of disposal and value in use, In assessing value in use, the estimated fulure cash fiows are discounted 1o
their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that refiects current marked assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific 10 the asset for which
the estimates of future cash flows have not been adjusted.

If the recoverable amount of an asset (or cash-generating unit) is estimated to be less than its carrying amount, the carrying amount of the asset (or cash-
generating unit) is reduced to its recoverable amount. An impairment loss is recognised immediately in profit or loss.

When an impairment loss subsequemly reverses, the camying amount of the asset (or a cash-generaling unit) is increased 10 the revised estimate of its
recoverable amount, but so that the increased carrying amount does not exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined had no impairment loss
been recognised for the asset (or cash-generating unit) in prior years. A reversal of an impairment loss is recognised immediately in profit or loss.

Inventories

The nwventories of all medicines, Medicare ftems, Stock of stores (Including lab matenais and other consumables), stationeries and housakeeping items are meant
for in-house consumption by the Company are valued at cost . Cost of these inventories comprises of all costs of purchase and other costs incurred in bringing the
inventories 1o their present location including applicable taxes wherever applicable, applying the FIFO method. The net realisable value is not applicable in the
absence of any further modificationvalteration before being consumed in-house only. All other materials are valued st cost or net realisable value whichever is
lower.

Imported inventories are accounted for at the applicable exchange rates prevading on the date of transaction.
Adequate conslderstion has been given for obsolete and non-moving inventory considering the COVID-18 impact.

Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Company has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as & resull of a past event, it is probable that the Company will be
required o settle the obligation, and a reliable estimate can be made of the ameunt of the obligation

The amount recognised as a provision is the best estimate of the consideration reguired to settle the present obligation at the end of the reporting period, taking
ino account the risks and uncertainties surmounding the obligation. When a provision ts measured using the cash flows estmated to settle the present obligation,
its carrying amount is the present value of those cash flows (when the effect of the time value of money is material)

When some or all of the economic benefits required to settle a provision are expected to be recovered from a third party, a receivable is recognised as an asset if
it is virtually cenain that reimbursement wili be recelved and the amount of the receivable can be measured reliably.

Considering the COVID-19 impact, the company has made certain assumptions and estimates to provide for adequsate provisions wherever applicable.

Onerous contracts

Present obligations arising under onerous conlracts are recognised and measired as provisions. An onerous contract Is considered to exist where the Company
has a contract under which the unavoidable costs of meeting the obligalions under the d the nic benefils expected to be recelved from the
contract,

Other Provisions
Other provisions (including third-party payments for malpractice claims if any) which are not covered by insurance and other costs for legal claims are recognised
based on legal opinions and management judgment.

Financial Instruments
Financial assets and financial labilities are recognised when a Company becomes a party 1o the contractual provisions of the instruments.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured at fair value. Transaction costs that are directly attributable to the acguisition or issue of financial
assets and financial liabilities (other than financial assets and financial liabiiifies at fair value through profit or loss) are added to or deducted from the fair value of
the financial assels or financial liablities, as appropriate, on Inftial recognition. Transaction costs directly atributable to the acquisifion of financial assets o
financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss are recognised immediately in profit or loss
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Financial assets
All regular way purchases or sales of financial assets are recognised and derecognised on a frade date basis. Regular way purchases or sales are purchases of
sales of financlal assets that require defivery of assets within the time frame established by regulation or convention in the marketplace.

All recognisad financial assets are subsequently measured In thelr entirety at either amortised cost or fair value, depending on the classification of the financial
assels

Classlfication of financial assets
All financial assets are subsequently measured at amortised cost

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the amortised cost and of allocating Interest income over the relevant pericd. The effective Interest rate is
the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash recsipts (including all fees and points paid or received that form an integral part of the effective Interest rate,
transaction costs and other premiums or discounts) through the expected life of the debt instrument, or, whera appropriate, a shorier period, 1o the net camying
amount on Inttial recognition.

Income is recognised on an effective interest basis for debt instruments other than those financial assets classified as at FVTPL. Interest income is recognised n
profit or loss and is Included in the “Other income” line item,

Financial assets at falr value through profit or loss (FVTPL)
Investrments in equity instruments are classified as at FVTPL, unless the Company irevocably efects on inial recognition fo present subsequent changes in far
value in olher comprehensive income for Investments In equity instruments which are not heid for trading

A financial asset that meets the amortised cost criterla may be designated as at FVTPL upon initial recognition if such designation eliminates or significantly
reduces a measurement or recognition incensistency that would arise from measuring assets or liabilities or recognising the gains and losses on them on different
bases

Financial assets at FVTPL are measured at fair value at the end of each reporting pericd, with any gains or losses arising on Remeasurement recognised in profit
or loss. The net gain of loss recognised In profit or loss incorporates any dividend or interest earned on the financial asset and is included In the ‘Other income’
line item. Dwvidend on financial assets a1 FVTPL is recognised when the Company's right to receive the dividends is established, it is probable that the economec
benefils assoclated with the dividend will flow 1o the entity, the dividend does not represent a recovery of par of cost of the investment and the amount of dividend
can be measured reliably.

Impairment of financlal assets
The Company applies the expected credit loss model for recognising impairment (0$s on financial assets measured at amortised cosl, | lease recalvables, trade
receivables, other confractual rights 1o receive cash or other financial asset

Expected credit losses are the weighted average of credit losses with the respective risks of default occurting as the weights. Credit loss is the difference between
all contractual cash flows that are due 1o the Company in sccordance with the contract and all the cash flows that the Company expects 1o recelve (l.e. all cash
shortfalls), discounted at the original effective inferest rate (oc credit-adjusted effective interest rate for purchased or originated credit-impaired financial assats).
The Company estimates cash flows by considering all contractual terms of the financial mstrument (for example, prepayment, extension, call and similar opticns)
through the expected life of that financlal instrument.

The Company measures the loss allowance for a financial instrument at an amount equal to the lifetime expected cradit losses if the credil risk on that financial
instrument has Increasad significantly since initial recognition, If the credit risk on a financial instrument has not increased significantly since initial recognition, the
Company measures the loss allowance for that financial instrument at an ameount equal 1o 12-month expected credit losses. 12-month expected credit losses are
portion of the life-time expected credit losses and represent the lifetime cash shortfalls that will result if default occurs within the 12 months after the reporting date
and thus, are not cash shortfalls that are predicted over the next 12 months.

If the Company measured loss allowance for a financlal Instrument at lifetime expected credit loss model in the previous pericd. but determines at the end of a
repodting period that the credit risk has not increased significantly since initial recognition due 1o improverent in cradit quality as compared 10 the previous period,
the Company again measures the loss alliowance based on 12-month expected credit losses.

When making the assessment of whether there has been a significant increase in credit risk since initlal recogniion, the Company uses the change in the risk of a
default occurring over the expected life of the financial instrument instead of the change in the amount of expected credd losses. To make that assessment, the
Company compares the risk of a default occurring on the financial instrument as at the reporting date with the risk of a default occurring on the financial instrument
as at the date of initial recognition and considers reasonable and supporiable information, that is available without undue cost or effort, that is indicative of
significant Increases in credit risk since initial recognition.

For frade receivables or any contractual right to receive cash or another financial asset that result from transactions that are within the scope of Ind AS 115, the
Company always measures the loss allowance st an amount equal to lifelime expected credit losses.

Further, for the purpose of measuring lifetime expected credit loss aliowance for trade recelvabies, the Company has used a practical expedient as permitled
under Ind AS 109, This expected cradit loss allowance is computed based on a provision malrix which 1akes into account historical credit loss experience and
adjusted for forward-locking information,

Derecognition of financlal assets

The Company derecognises a financial asset when the contractual rights to the cash flows from the asset expire, or when it transfers the financial asset and
substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of the asset to enother party. If the Company neither transfers nor refains substantially &ll the risks and rewards
of ownership and continues to control the fransferred asset, the Company recognises its refained interest in the asset and an associated liability for amounts it may
have to pay. If the Company retains substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of a transferred financial asset, the Company contnues to recognise the
financial asse! and also recognises a collateralised borrowing for the proceeds received.

On derecognition of a financial asset in its entirety, the difference between the asset's carmying amount and the sum of the consideration recetved and receivable
and the cumulative gain or loss that had been recognised in other comprehensive income and accurmulated in equity s recognisad in profit oc loss If such gain or
loss would have otherwise been recognised in profit or loss on disposal of that financial asset.
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On ion of a financial asset other than in its entirety (e.0. when the Company refains an oplion to repurchase part of a transferred asset), the Company
aliocates the previous camrying amount of the financial asset between the part it continues to recognise under continuing involvemnent, and the part it no longer
racognises on the basis of the relative fair values of those pants on the date of the transfer. The difference between the carmying amount allocated to the pan that is
no longer recognised and the sum of the consideration received for the part no longer recognised and any cumulative gain or loss allocated 1o it that had been
recognised In other comprehensive income is recognised in profit or loss if such gain or loss would have otharwise been recognised in profit or loss on disposal of
that financial assel. A cumulative gain or loss that had been recognised in other comprehensive incoma Is sllocated between the pan that continues to be
recognised and the par that is no longer recognised on the basis of the relative fair values of those parts.

Financial liabilities and equity instruments

Classification of Equity Instruments

Equity instruments issued by a Company enfity are classified as either financial liabdities or as equity in accordance with the substance of the contraciual
and the definitions of a financial liabilty and an equity instrument.

An equity Instrument is any contract thal evidences a residual interest in the assets of an entity after deducting all of is liabilities. Equity instruments issued by a

Company entity are anised at the p d: ived, net of direct issue costs.

Financlal liabliitles

All financial kabilities are subseguently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method or at FVTPL.

However, financial liabilities that arise when a transfer of a financial asset does not qualify for derecognition or when the continuing involvement approach applies.
are measured in accordance with the specific accounting policies set out below.

Financial liablliitles at FVTPL
Financial liabilites are classified as at FVTPL when it applies or is held for trading or it Is designated as at FVTPL.

A financial liability is classified as held for trading if:
= it has been incurred principally for the purpose of repurchasing d i the near term; or
= on initial recognition it is part of a portfolio of identified financial instruments that the Company manages together and has a recent actual pattern of
shori-term profit-taking. or
< itis a derivative that is nof designated and effective as a hedging instrument.
Financial liabilities at FVTPL are stated at fair value, with any gains or losses ansing on Remeasurement recognised in profit or loss The net gain or loss
recognisad in profit or loss incorporates any interest pald on the financial liability and is included in the ‘Other income’ line item

However, for non-held-for-trading financial liabilities that are designated as al FVTPL, the amount of change in the fair value of the financial liability that is
atiributable to changes in the credit risk of tha liability is recognised in other comprehensive income, unless the recognition of the effects of changes In the
liability's credit risk in other comprehensive income would create or enlarge an accounting mismatch In profit or loss, In which case these effects of changes in
credit risk are recognised In profit or loss. The remaining amount of change In the fair value of ability is always recognised in peofit or loss, Changes in fair value
attributable 1o & financial liability's credit risk that are recognised in other comprehensive income are reflected immediately in retained eamings and are not
subsequently reclassified 1o profit or loss.

Falr value |s determined In the manner described In note 33,8

Financial liabilities subsequently measured at amortised cost

Financial llabilities that are not hela-for-trading and are not designated as al FVTPL are measured at amortised cost at the end of subsequent accounting periods.
The camying amounts of financial abilities that are subsequently measured at amortised cost are determined based on the effective interest method. Interest
expense that is not capitalised as part of costs of an asset is included in the 'Finance costs' line item.

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the amontised cost of a financial liability and of allocating interest expense over the relevant period. The
effective interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash payments (including all fees and points pald or recelved that form an integral part of
the effective interest rate, transaction costs and other premiums or discounts) through the expected life of the financial lability, or (where appropriate) a shorter
period, to the net carrying amount on initial recognition.

Derecognition of financial liabilitles

The Company derecognises financial liabllities when, and only when, the Company’s obligations are discharged, cancelled or have expired. An exchange between
with a lender of debt instruments with substantially different terms is accounted for as an extinguishment of the onginal financial liability and the recognition of a
new financial liability. Similarty, a substantial modification of the terms of an existing financial liability (whether or not attributable to the financial difficutty of the
deblor) is accounted for as an extinguishment of the original financiai liability and the recogniion of a new financial liability. The difference between the carrying
amount of the financial liability derecognised and the consideration paid and payable Is recognised in profi or loss.

Segment reporting
The Company uses the “management approach® for reporting information about segments in annual financial statements. The management approach is based on
the way the chief operating decislon-maker organizes segments within @ company for making operating decisions and assessing performance. Reportable
segments are based on services, geography, legal structure, management structure and any other manner in which management disaggregales a company.
Based on the “management approach” model, the Company has determined that its business is comprised of a single operating segment which comprise of
Healthcere sarvice.

First-time adoption -~ mandatory exceptions, optional exemptions

Overall principle

The Company has prepared the opening balance sheet as per Ind AS of April 1, 2015 (the transition date) by recognising all assets and liabilities whose
recognition Is required by Ind AS, not recognising items of assets or labilities which are not permitted by Ind AS, by rectassifying items from previous GAAP to Ind
AS required under Ind AS, and applying Ind AS in measurement of recognised assels and liabilties, However, this principle is subject 1o the cerlain exception and
certain optional exemptions availed by the Company as detailed below.

Derecognition of financial assets and financial liabilities
The Company has applied the derecognition requirements of financial assets and financial liabilities prospectively for transactions occurring on or after Apni 1,
2015 (the fransition data).
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Classification of debt instruments
The Company has determined the classification of debt instruments In terms of whether they meet the amortised cost crileria or the FVTOC crteria based on the
facts and circumstances that existed as of the transition date.

Impalrment of financial assets

The Company has applied the Impairment requirements of Ind AS 108 retrospectively. however. as psrmitted by Ind AS 101 it has used reasonable and
supportabie information that s available without undue cost or effort 1o determine the credit risk at the date that financial instruments were initially recognised in
order to compare it with the credit risk at the transition date. Further, the Company has not undertaken an exhaustive search for information when determining, at
the date of traneition to Ind ASs, whether there have been significant increases in credit risk since initial recognition, as permitted by Ind AS 101.

Deemed cost for proparty, plant and equipment, investment property, and Intangible assets
For transition to ind AS, Company has elecled to continue with the carrying value of all of its property. plant and equipment recognised as of April 1, 2015
(transition date) measwred as per the previous GAAP and use that carrying value as its deemed cost s of the transition date

Determining whether an arrangement contains a lease
The Company has applied Appendix C of ind AS 17 Determining whether an Arrangement contains a Lease to determine whether an arrangement existing at the
fransition date contains s lease on the basis of facts and circumstances existing a1 that date.

Business Combinations

Ind AS 101 provides the option 1o apply Ind AS 103 prospectively from the transition date or from a specific date prior 1o the transition dale. This provides redief
from full retrospective application that would require restatement of all business combinations prior 1o the transition date The company elected to apply Ind AS
103 prospeciively to business combinations cccurring after its transilicn date. Business combmations accurming prior 10 the transition date have not been restated

Long-term foreign currency monetary items

Under previcus GAAP, paragraph 46/46A of AS 11 The EMects of Changes in Foreign Exchange Rates, provided an aemative accounting treatment to
companies with respect to exchange differences arising on restaterent of long term foreign currency monetary items. Exchange differences on accourt of
depreciable assets could be addedideducted from the cost of the depreciable asset, which would then be depreciated over the balance life of the asset. In other
cases, the exchange difference could be accumulated in a foreign curréncy monetary item translation difference account, and amortised over the balance period of
such long term asset! liability. Ind AS 101 Includes an optional exemption that allows a first-time adopter 1o continue the above accounting treatment in respect of
the long-lerm foreign curency monetary ilems recognised in the financial statements for the period ending immediately before the beginning of the first ind AS
financial reporting period. The exemption under Ind AS 101 will not be available for keng-term foreign curency monetary flems recognised after this date.
Accordingly the Company has efected to apply this optionat exemption on transition

Critical accounting judgements and key sources of estimation uncertalnty

In the application of the Company’s accounting palicies, which are described in note 3, the directors of the Company are required to make judgements, estimates
and assumptions about the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent from other sources. The estimates and associated assumptions
are based on historical experience and other faciors that are considered 1o be relevant, also COVID-19 impact has been considered. Actual results may differ from
these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumpticns are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised in the period in which the
estimate Is revisad If the revision affects only that period, or in the pericd of the revision and future periods if the rewision affects both current and fulure periods

Critical judgements in applying accounting policies
The following are the critical judgements, apar from those Invoiving estimations that the directors have made in the process of applying the Company’s accounting
policies and that have the most significant effect on the amounts recognised in the consolidated financial statements

Useful lives of property, plant and equipment
The Company reviews the estimated useful lives of property, plant and equipment at the end of sach reporting period. During the current year, the directors
determined 1hat there are no changes to the existing PPAE useful lives.

Falr value measurements and valuation processes

In estimating the fair value of an asset or a liability, the Company uses market-observable data to the extent it Is available, Where Level 1 inputs are not available,
the Company engages third party qualified values 1o perform the valuation. The mansgement works closely with the qualified external values to estabiish the
appropriate valuation techniques and inputs 10 the model. The Chief Financiai Officer reports the findings to the board of directors of the Company 1o explain the
cause of fluctuations in the fair value of the assets and liabilities.

Information about the valuation techniques and Inputs used in determining the fair value of various assets and liabilities are disclosed in note 33

Employee Benefits

The cost of defined benefit plans are determined using actuanial valuations. The actuarial valuation involves making assumplions about discount rates, expected
rates of retun on assets, future salary increases, mortality rates and fulure pension increases. Due to the iong-term nature of these plans, such estimates are
subject to significant uncertainty. Further details are given in note 32

Litigations
The Company has a ongoing litigations, the results of which could significantly affect its operations and profitability

Revenue Recognition

Revenue from fees charged for inpatient and outpatient hospitaliclinical servicas rendered fo insured and corporate patients are subject to approvals for the
insurance companies and corporates. Accordingly, the Company estimates the amounts likely to be disatiowed by such companies based cn past frends and the
COVID-19 impact.

Estimations based on past trends are also required in determining the value of consideration from customers {0 be allocated to award credits for customers

Expected Credit Losses
The company has used a practical expedient by computing the expected cradit loss allowance for trade receivables based on a provision matrix considening the
nature of receivables and the risk characteristics. The provision matrix takes into account historical credit loss experience and adyusted for forward looking
information, The expected credit loss allowance is based on the ageing of the days the recaivables are due and the rates as given in the provision matrix. The
impact of COVID-19 has been considered while arriving at ECL provision. Also Refer Note 8




§ Property, plant and equipment and

Carrying amounts of:
Land - Freehakt

Buldings - Freshold
Medical Equipment

Surgical Instruments

Offica Equipment

Furmniture and Fixiures
Vahicles

Air Conditicning Plant & ArConditioners
Computers

Assel Under Finance Lease

Capital work-in-progress

As at As at

31-Mar-22 J1-Mar-21
19,0085 996 19.00.85 996
80.27.55.045 80,34.40 085
81.62,50.063 845184810
1.00.42.142 63.22 680
1.03,05.627 1,67,62.036
1847225 2.09.77.365
11408912 68,96 808
26562.3686 2.062.30.742
£8,65.980 44,87 305

28511366 3.08,35462
9. 9 177

Description of Assets Land - Freehold ™ | Bulldings - Freehold| Medical Equipment Instruments | Ofce Equipment|  “Cge T Total

Deemed cost

Balance as at 31.-Mar.21 19,00,86,996 89.29,12.381 1.36.19.41.447 3.68.89.856 5.51.36.903 34187613 1.06,50,130 4,87,16.201 2,95,88,812 6.06.42.273 27207.561811
Additions . 1.64.54.634 6,567,11,037 77,851,580 10,50,159 8.01.802 61.59.016 15.28.841 47.57.263 10,32,14,333
Disposals - 14.33.24.220) (6,34,308) - (4,38 68.628)
Balance as at 31-Mar-22 19.00.56.99¢ 90.83,67.018 1.38.43,28,264 44641436 5.61.87,062 34389415 1.6274.838 5.02.44.042 3.43.46,076 6,06,42.273 2720107416 W
Accumulated depreclation -
Balance as at 31-Mar-21 - 8.84.72.296 51.67.76.837 2.7567.176 3.93.84.867 1.32.10.248 38,13, 234 1,94,84,459 2,61,01.507 2.97.06.811 764517 436
Elminated on disposal of assets . o (3.72,65,816) (1.38.828) . (3.73.94.744)]
Oepreciation expanse - 16139674 8.65.48.289 70.31.119 64.96.568 33.06.917 11,981,620 4197197 23,74,809 24.24.096 12,97 09,989
Balance as at 31-Mar-22 - 10.56.11.970 56.60.69,.210 34698295 45881425 1.6517.165 48.65.926 2.36,81.656 27476115 3.21,30,907 85.68,32,680
Carrying Amount 31-Mar-21 19,00,86,996 80,34 40 086 845164610 93,22 680 15752036 2,08,77,365 68,36,896 2,92,30,742 44 87,306 3,08.35 462 1,956234.177
Carrying Amount 31-Mar-22 19.00,86,996 80,27 55 046 81,8269 053 1,00,43,142 1,03,05627 1,84,72,250 1,14,08.912 265,62,306 62,659,560 2,851,356 1,92,32.74,736

The Company operates a hospital from a buildng constructed an a plece of iang which was onginally allatted 1o the company by the Goverament of Karnataka, subject to certain terms and Conditions. During the financial year 2014-15, the Special Deputy Commissioner, Revenue
ded to pass an oeder demanding surrender

Department, Gavernment of Karnataka happened 10 issue a notice alleging non compliance of the ¢

o d with the ak

of the land far which the company filed appropriate replies

The said

ving all allegs

of the land along with the building and other assets as a going concern In favour of another Government run Hospital, Further, the company received a direction dated 19.04.2018, from the Directarate of Medical Education, Gavernment of Kasnataka, demanding handover of the Land along
with the building and the operations of the hospital to the designated committee. On receipt of this notice, the Company approached the Hon, Xarnataka High court chalienging the action of the authority and questioning the process of justice. The Hon. High Court of Karnataka was pleased

ta set aside the order passed by the autharity and remitted the matter back 10 the authority with directions Lo re-consider the matter in accordance with the law and disposal.

Furthar, The Under Secretary, R

Dapartment
reply deaying 29 sliegations and has substantiated how it has compbed with all the conditions of land allotment and has requestec the said autharity ta drap all further proceedings

of Kamataka has issuwed, afresh a show cause notice dated th Feb. 2022, seeking objections form the company for the alleged victation in the conditions of Iand allatment. The comparny, on 7th March 2022 has filed a suitable

There is no further action teken by the Government of Karnataka after the said replies were submitted. The company, going by the mests and supported by the legal opinions obtained, is confident that the matter will get resalved in its favour in 31l respacts and all funther proceedings will be

dropped by the authorites,

Durng FY 2018-18, Kamataka industrial Area Development Boand has acquired porton of the land and butdng (1003 Sg MT) balonging to the company for the purpese of Mewro Rail construcson. The compensatan for such acquisson is determined 30 be - for land R 5.36,15, 170V and for

the Buidng R 36,84,714 which the company nas accepted Since, there was a case pendng before the Kamataka High Court with

1o the

ip of the

18nd the compensaton amount relating to the acqusition of the parton of the Iand and bukding has been deposited in

the Cay Civil Court after deducting the TOS Rs. 1.14.50 677 (al the rate of 20% of the compensation amourt). This amount stays deposited in City Civil Cowt and considanng !e udgment of the Hon. High Coun of Kamataka. sefting aside the order of the Revenue authorities. the Company
15 In the procass of clalming release of this amount keptin the City Civi Court.



ear ended March 31, 2022

6 Intangible Assets

31-Mar-22 31-Mar-21
Carrying amounts of :
Computer software 38,80,571 68,14 685
38,80,571 68,14,685
Deemed Cost
Balance as at 01 April , 2021 1,40,11,791.00 86,53,416
Additions 21,00,176 53,58,375
Balance as at 31 March, 2022 1,61,11,967 1,40,11,791
Accumulated depreciation
Balance as at 01 April , 2021 71,97,106 29,82,556
Amortisation expense for the year 50,34,290 4214 550

Balance as at 31 March, 2022 1,22,31,396 71,97,106




T Othwr levastmants

[carmed # cout) 31-Mar-22 I-Mar-21
Moo Current, Surent Non Currsnd Surent
Unauoted lwesaments
Investmants n Eguty Instruments
Maex Agro PV Lid 50,000 shares of 5.00.000 500,000
R 10 aach Tty o
Total imestments 2.00000 . 500,000 =
Acaregate camyng value of ungucted Imeesiment: £.00.000 . 5.00.000 -
The Compary has irvested in T shaves of Matris Agro Private sl 18 power E witwred wto dunng 2015-18
8 Trade receivables
[carned o amortised costl IN-Mar-2 IMar21
Current Non Current Current
Umnecyred, comsscered Good I 740045 NS
Unsecumd, conmicensd couttful 271 87 6587 109778
Aborwanca dor Coustiul Cu bty (egectsd crec o Wiowance| 49.71,87 857) (1097 42,728)
: NTADAR :
Receivabie Ageing as on 31 Mar ﬂ - -
g Oebtoes Category 03m A S Toual
Undeputed Co Good 1511,31.011 1,50,28602 SAT85391 AMR3501 | 1 AKI6 2K 23324478 35,36,09.460
Undsputed ficant Increase io Credit Rk 1 1.47.53.712 1.24,53,525 1.0541510 20,55.188 4,02,10435
_Undaputed ficant Increas in Credi Rak (Lews 2 1449087 23,91,162 7501731 80,76,389 3,00,18379
Undeputed Cred# impared 1296 340,511 AA2A9 | 3210605 | 1,29, 30087 28166502 5.81.04 667
Disputed | Congderes Good .
Daputed Ificant Incremse in Credin Risk (Level 1 - 25.
Drputed Increase in Credit Rk 2-51-75%) :
Dsputed Credh wpaved 1.55.19672 1,26,53,787 2,1431.332 12209258 | 12893918 75,89.236 8,23,47203
Unsppled Unipphed 663563277 2,88,06,463 10028521 | 20106314 o 16325331 138431847
Totn 1455,18.450 7,86,76,124 PETVZRTT) M TCERLT) I 574AL10| 51857296 :
G Code Gl Aemmunt Dracrgtion _
1403001 Proveias for Goubtful Debty FTET6ET 35
3712312 Prowvsion for Disalowances 451857205 34935786
1711318 |Provsion For Unrealised Revenu 23,
31, 452

. Contrmanons of baances from Dedtors are yet 0 be recenes, though the comgany has sert eomals seeking comrmation fom hem The taances adopted ae & sppesng . the bocks of acoounts of the
company setof! unanphed credis.

V. Surdry Detrors rep: the aggregas of detx G 0N hosordal sercoes. pharmacy supples 3nd docion lees that we comudesd good The compiny hods fo cer secartes other than Te pecsona
sacunty of the dettomns

Migoedy of the comoanys 1aneacions are eamed n cash o cash Tre trade P mainly of from rewrance Compx Comp and

L gh The < Are rEQUPET 10 MaNtan minimum reserve levels and the C: < are wilh high credt rasngs gly. the C. % oredt sk in
relation 10 Irade recencatins e low

Wrhile aszessing 1he Impadt of COVD-18on from the el s Toe tode of delsy 1 cobRctom md e SRR TS Deen cofederad wivk sereng 3l ECL provson

Thu aversge crecil pancd on sakes of senvices & 30-00 davs Yom e dase of e nvoice

The company bas used 3 racical oy G he oedit bas for vade Gusad o & don matrec The po matrx takes 900 Retount haloncll tredt O

experence and adjusted for forward looking The crect: ko s tused Cn Pe ageng of Ihe days e onivabies are due 8d I reles 38 per e groveion malic Dl natcnsl Patent
Bl of The United Repubic of Tanzana are not for the aedk e




Novement in the expectod oredit loss alowance —21:Mar-23 EARTICSN
Balance & beginning of the yes 1097 42728 40.46.96,356

2 n crwdit ks on {1.25,55,051) 50 46,33
Irace o Wetime
e ok
Batance at snd of the year PR 7 L. A Y (X5

9 Cash and cash squivelents
(carmiec w amotaed cost|
—E -Mar2l

Damnces wih Sanks

Ot ank baances 8715127 11,7239 295
Cash on hand 4912177 1 %62
Canh and cash squivalents as por statement of cash flows 16,3677 3504 1!

10 Cenee Financial Assets FTETTE - - 21 Mar2t

(carried & amortisnd oot | _NonCurent Cutrent hon Cyrrent Current.
unsecwrod. considensd oood uriess ciherwise stated
Interes recenvatie
Deposts * 7.50. 42605 . 14872685
Adearce lo smpcyees
Unbiied Recevaties 2514008 das3aore

zaﬁs% 2.51,40,058 JAST2585 638078
"Note - Depost! nddoces Rs. 57205804 pad by X1 10 e City Civil Coutt 1o aoquistion of portien of 1end and buldng. For detabs, peme reler T note 0. 5




41 Doforred tax

Defewed Tax Assets 3446,67,087 2901 53808
Cefeses Tax Uatiities 1 1 A
348005
w112
poring In Profit or Recognised in  Recognisad Closing Baknce Acquisiions/
Loss oct Directly in Dispossls
Eouity
Irmsamerts 0 associales -
Ifrvsdesant in jont verture . -
Peozeity, phant and equomant (22.71.81 6301 (7645731} 1234827 329|
Finance leases 037257 3.14.000 1351257
FVTPL Sinandal assets . .
Financiat assals ot FVTOC! -
Celemed revenus -
o fosenn 15,565,604} 5.5, 604
Provisions. £4,65,585 64,65,588) .
Provisien for doutiful detes 6.90,44 641 14.07,43.502) 2.0.01.04%
Defined Denest otigation (25,17 618) 3.11,56262 7.98.375 2.80.05038
Ofther firancint tabilties 14,80.000) 4,00.000 -
Others - L Loss r 7172763 (37T BaTaZ) 3400 022
Toul _ amseen @EOTOT0E  73eare - 12371025
Tax woaes - c
Cthers (1.31.00413) 1.31100.41 .
MAT Creat 1547 21,380 482,48 6, BTk AL
°  pamse) BCRERTXEZ S X3 1 s -
1
202020
ponng B In Profit or Aecognsed in  Recognised Closing Balanoe Acquisiionsl
Loss oct Directly in Dspossis
Ecuity
Iremel=a ot o aesociates -
It ey in 0Nl verbae . -
Propedy, piant and equemment (Zz.088% 221 163.00.437) (227181630
Finance heosas. & 84897 55238 1w03r:r
FVTFL fnancal sssets - E
Fnarcal sumts @l FVTOC! -
Dwinmed revenus -
t on lorean {5.08.604) 16 58,604}
Provisions 6465588 64,55,506
Prevision for soutasd Gebts 679,759 1469432 6,90,44.641
Defined Deneft obigation (3% .81 647 24479 13,90 450 (25,4769
Other Anancal labities 14,90.000) 14.90.000)
Others - Urabsorbed Loas nduting IT Ceorecation 5682931 1590832 TITA063
Toul (145832509 TASTT (ieoawm) 1147036852 :
Tax bogses - .
Oers €131 03,413 (1.31.00.413}
WMAT Credt 18 41,08 72 078, 1547
377,132 lipazssa)  (13304%0) _amos :
12 Inventories
2-Mpe-32 SnMar)
3) Imeeotones (carned o Cost}
Medicines 1,22.85,000 TEETI6
Lao manerias 6628462 2704965
Comumaties” _ 36583103 0897570
55436,1895
*Cormamaties nouce ' Wand C Printing and Statonery eic Ao refer fte 16

o, RESER,
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Name of oetumny]
of Amaant -
For the quarter emded Nase of Bank o W(l-o ceturnw|
Wjun-21 iMMl&ml AMRS
W -Sep-21 Peimary - Exchusive charge lnuun-u a0
on B etiee cument Assets
of the horrows, present and
3Dee ) future Collaseral - Esclosve e o Dot satrenens 1000
(Charge on the movable freed
aswets of the compeny . Lemer
of comfort from AHEL
Ungw b stock detalls
3 Dec 21 tachand by Boerd Resolation 14
Axis Dank And usdortaking from the [ Trate popabiem for
mhﬂmhm )
Lcharge on kel sl bulding
e hosgezal locahnd on
Barowexyhaltsa Road Timing difference due to credit
S1Mar22 Bengabury once the eviction |B0ck Dete stateavent 33 ASLY 12600 | notea/Provision beoked, post sbmission
notice served by BDA of statement to bank
i
Authorry) s withdrawan
Unpaad stock detais
N-Mar-22 1 1 5300 | Advance adjustment i Trace papable,
( Toade payables hiw past whmbsion of statement to bark
oends |
13 Othet Assets It-Nar-23
Sysreat ———rTO
Captal Acvances 49 30 506
Otmer Advances. 7.97.808 4069247
Agvance for Good 2,80350 9.50,€38
Prapad Lapersas €,19,22 150 & 44 55150
Acvance 1o eeglyees 15364 12.35.275
- 1428078
—_— ep070 _8RI0ST) 63,60.381 51084141

\
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Particul 2 ?-L -

As at 31 March 2021 29,94,50,000
Changes In equity share capital during the year .
As at 31 March 2022 29,94,50,000
Remarks / Commentary

Balances should be net of treasury shares. The above table should provide aggregate opening, movement and closing values for all classes of Equity Capital.

b.Other Equity

Reserve and surplus Items of other income
e Deb (or Equity) | Effective | 00 ]
Particulars financlal General Capital Shetupremion Revaluation Reuined' instrument through | portion of riants Actuarial Gain / Total
stauneas Reserve reserve Earnings Other Com- Cash Flow (Specif (Loss)
L prehensive Income | Hedges natare)

Adjusted balances as at 31 March 2020 14,89,433( 19,90,00,000 19,90,00,000 | 46,96,55,669 - - 25,20,3%0 87,16,65,493
|Profit / {Loss) for the period 8,31,95,924 - 8,31,95,924
Other Comprehensive Income ¢ (Loss) 33,84,447 33,84,447
Total Comprehensive Income for the year

Dividend paid on Equity Shares

Dividend Distribution Tax

Transfers to Reserves

Transfers from retained earnings

Any other changes < IND AS 114 .
As at 31 March 2021 14,89,433 19,90,00,000 19,90,00,000] 55,28,51,593 59,04,837 95,82,45,864
Adjusted balances as at 31 March 2021 14,89,423 19,90,00,000 19,90,00,000| 55,28,51,593 - - 59,04,837 95,82,45,864
|Profit / {Loss) for the period 30,61,36,723 - 30,61,36,723
Other Comprehensive Income / (Loss) (18,41,065) (18,41,065)
Total Comprehensive Income for the year

Dividend paid on Equity Shares

Dividend Distribution Tax

Transfers to Reserves

Transfers from retained earnings

Any other changes - IND AS 116

As at 31 March 2022 14,89,433 19,90,00,000 19,90,00,000| 85,89,88,316 - - - 40,63,772 1,26,25,41,522




k a h Centre Limited
mnpmwmmmmwmumu. 2022

14 Equity Share Capital

Authorised Share capital :
3.50,00,000 fulty paxd equity shares of Re. 10 each

Issued and subseribed capital comorises:
2,99,45,000 fully paid equtty shares of Re. 10 sach

(a) Fully paid equity shares

Balance at Aprl 1, 2015
Capita issued

Balance a1 March 31, 2016
Capital issued

Balance at Apdil 1, 2021
Capiral issued

Balance at March 31, 2022

Fully pald equity shares, wiwch have 3 par valse of Rs,. 10 camy ane vote

per share and carry a nght $o dividends.

[5) Dwtsils of shares heid by the holding company
Particulars
Apcilo Hospitals Enterpass Limited

(¢} Details of shares held by each shareholder holding squal to or more than 5% shares

Fully paid eguity shares

Avcla Hospitas Entrodse Limited
Cr. Vigar Syed

Shni Zisuks Shecifl

Total

15 Other equity

Caoitsl Raserva
Share Pramm
Revalslion Reserve
Retained warnings

As at As at
31-Mar22 _:-Mar21
35,00,00,000 35,00,00,000
29.94,50.000 23,54 50,000 .
29,94,50,000 29,94,50,000
Number of shares Share capital
{Amount)
2,98,45,000 266.45
2.99,45,000 28645
2.99,45,000 25,94 50,000
2,95,45,000 29,94,50,000_
31-Mys-22 31-Mar-21
2.66.50,495 259,50 496
31-Mar-22 I-Mar-21
Number of % holding of equity Number of % holding of equity
Shares held shares Shares heid shares
2,66 .50.495 505 259,80 456 0%
1497250 5% 14,97 250 5%
14.97,250 5% 14,97 280 5%
2,99,44,996 100% 29944906 100%
As at As at
Note 31 31-Mar-21
151 14,869,432 1489 433
1582 19,90,00,000 19,90.00,000
153 19,90,00.000 19,90.00,000
184 85,30,52 089 =
1,265,256, 41,522

55,57.56.4. ==
93,82 43 863 /_’:\',cnrre 5’0;\\\
/- A

o




rial & h Cantre Limited
Notes to the financkl statements for the vear ended March 31, 2022
AAmounts in INR_ynless otherwise stated)

15.1 Capital reserve As at As ot
31-Mar-22 I1:Mardt
Balance at beginning of year 14,09 433 14.89,433
Movement durrg the yesr
Balance at end of year 14,289,433 14,89.433
15,2 Share Premium
Ealance at beginning of yesr 18,50,00,000 19.90,00.000
Mavement during the ysar
Balance st end of year 19,90,00,000 45.90,00,000
15.3 Revaluation Reserve
Balance at beginning of year 19.92,00.000 19,60.00,000
Movement durng the year
Balance at end of year 18,90,00,000 18,50,00,000
15.4 Retained eamings As at As at
31-Mar-22 31
Ealanoe at beginning of year 5587 55,430 47,21,76,050
Profit attnbutable to owners of the Compary 30,81.35,723 6.31,95.924
Other comprehensive income arising from remeasurament of defined {18,41,065) 33,84 447
baneft abligation nat of noome Lax
IND AS Transition Reserve on Lesses 3 =
Balance st end of year 86,30,52,089 55,87,56,430

16 Borrowings

(camed at amertised cost) As at 31-Mar-22 As at 31-Mac-21
___MNonCument  Current NonCument _ Current

Secured

(1) Yerm loans from banks 45.00,00.000 58,81.12.500

(10 Shoet Term Borrowings

Total 45,00,00,000 - 55“.13& -

* Currenl maluries have deen declosed under cther fnancial habilties.
Refer note 18




Hosoital & Cantre Limited
Notes to the finencial statements for the vesr ended March 31, 2022
nne

161 S of

Axis Bank Term Loan

Complete repayment in the FY2026-27 | 148 - Emch

is 2% of the value off the term loan (Totael 16% of the teem loan) and
9-36 (each 13 3% of the vaium of the tarm loan (lots

B84% of the term loan)

(b) Details of Sacurity

Exdusive charge on !he mavaable fixed assets of the company (prasert

and Naure). Letter of comfon from Apolia Hospitals Erserpriss Lid

Axis Bank Term Loan

(a) Terms of Repayment:

Repaymant starting from 01.00.2021, 24 Quanery Installement
Sanctionsd amount & Rs. 18 Crores. Ullised Rs 207 croces in FY20-21
{b) Detalls of Security

Exclusive charge on the moveabls fixed assets of the company (present
and futare)

Axis Bank Cash Credt

{#) Terms of Repayment: Limt of 150 milion as » 31 03 2022

(b) Detxils of Secusity

Primary - Exclusive chirge 00 e enire CUTent sssets of the Dorower,
and ke C - E Charge on e movelio twec

sesats of he company. Lefier of comin Sem AMEL becked by Board

Resotution And g from Pe company 1© create charge

on land and Bulding of the oated on e v Roed.
Bengalury orcs e SvWicion notce served by BOA (Bargaiors
Development Authorty) & wENdrawan

“Refer mote no. 34 dor Ruduted Party Tramsoson

Rate of inferest % At-Mar21

FY 21.22 7.35% FY 2021 57,0000, $9,00,00,000

7 45%

FY 21.22 7.60% 0 2,07,00,000

FY 20-21 8.08%

FY 2122 7.7%% ]

FY 20-21 7 85%

7 71,07,
As at 21-Mar22 As ot 31 Mar-31
= 70833013 6,005,519
- 7,48,48 832 . 7 83 66,404
4,52,80,370 3 80,086,795

- 7.02,72,082 . 74268936
- 16,06 60,354 : 273136870
: 43,01,96,420 g 5242,18535




Hospital & Cantra Limited
Notes to the financial staterments for the year ended March 31, 2022
{Amounts n INR_yriess oiheratse stated)

Creditors Ageing a5 on 31 Mar 2022

Particulars Less than 1 year 1-2 years 2-3 yeans than 3 years Grand Total
TMSME e 1 aasaesu | 168,285 204 | eRI0e | 4528030
|2.0thers T 36,56,87,674 1,03,71,851 18,33,196 | 70,23,330 38,49,16,050 |
4.Dicputed Oums - Others : ) : : .
Total 0,98,37,208 | 10540336 263,640 55439 43,01,96,420
Credintors. ason il
Particulars Las than 1 your 1.2 years 2.3 years than 3 Grand Towal
1asME * 10946695 476805 461,686 199,609
2 Ohers | esnn| ____B#Bom 1680568 | _sesnr 426128723 |
A 0uputed Danp - Ouhers 2 - = &
Total JETECXTY wasw] o3l s 524215535 |
18 Other Pinancial lisbiltiss R Y % E T - - Y FiC s | —
Sunary Cradilon - Capta 57.69,573 lig 513
Casrent muluritias of fnance lesss obligations 04779634 1470288 6,82 40923 1345801

i { from banks 2
T CXIALX) “iiramen esLeE i6onsdate




I rial & R Cantre Limited
Notes to the financial stetermants for the year ended March 31, 2022
{Amounts in INR_yniess otherwipe sinted)

"1 ¢~ B—— 1 L)L E—
——MonCuvest __ Cuvest WooCwremt ______ Cuvesd

- 25002054 . 00,63 008
1.3 78394 1,00.02,730 21202324 05,47, 72%
1,44,76.658 _ 3300810 1T7348TI 10681306
3,905,052 4483110 28907195 20001897
As at As at
A 31-Mar-22 31-Mar21
28,52.50,823 10,54.01,818
R L E— Y 1S
PR ¥ -~ MY Y VTR
As 3t 31-Mar-22 As at 31 Mar-2Y
1.6 47 000 1.34 70270
99.3),117 12006044




22 Revenue from Operations

(a) Revenue from rendering of healthcare services
(b) Other operating revenues

23 Other Income
a) Interest income

Bank deposits
Interest on IT Refund

b) Other non-operating income (net of expenses directly
attributable to such income)

Sale of Scrap

Other Income

c) Other gains/Losses
Foreign Exchange Fluctuation Gans/(Losses)

24 Employee benefits expense

Salanes and wages
Contribution to provident and other funds
Staft weifare expenses

Bonus

25 Finance costs

Interest on term loans
Interest on Cash credit facilities
Interest on finance lease obligation and Others
Other interest expense
Bank Charges - credit card and others

26 Depreciation and amortisation expense

D ciation of property. plant and equipment
Amortisation of intangible assets
Amortisation on nght fo use asset

Year ended Year ended
__31-Mar-22 n
3.11,82,14,831 2.30.30.75.135
24,28.823 2252853
3,12,06.43 654 230,8428,788
Year ended Year ended
31-Mar-22 _I-Mar21
50,970 F
- _97,42,439
50,970 97,42439
6,75,052 474714
1,40.31.486 3722774
147,086,638 4197488
412,023 377674
412,023 371874
Year ended Year ended
31-Mar-22 31-Mar-21
47.25,14 580 44,77 88 560
34585031 3,58.13.547
1,46.42970 14118401
4,42.36 094 10225183
56,59.78,876 50.80.45,700
Year ended Year ended
31-Mar-22 31-Mar-21
4,88,97,009 6,24,37 306
- 981
61,24 905 6552261
1,42.21,053 1,17,60,355
§.52,42,966
Year ended Year onded
31-Mar-22 31-Mar-21
12.72.85.692 14,69.08 621
50.34 290 4175755
24.24 096 15899412
_3e4a8 16.69,83,788




27

A ¥ .
roo f
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Other expenses
Year ended Year ended
_31-Mar-22 i

Power and fuel 48704109 44579125
Water Charges 12.03.224 895415
Rent 3,21,82,084 26488759
Repairs to Buildings 2494121 9641611
Repairs to Machinery 547,58, 446 3,58,11.789
Repairs to Vehicles 6,28,186 338421
Office Maintenance & Others 1,58,85 445 20871708
Insurance 37.58.441 4124333
Rates and Taxes, excluding taxes on income 1.43.06,149 B84,02,801
Printing & Stationery 1.27.82 879 1,17.27,102
Postage & Telegram 296,992 3,569,963
Advertisement. Publicity & Marketing 3,37,70,183 1,88,45663
Travelling & Conveyance 1,05,04,244 7434378
Legal & Professional Fees (Refer note 27 1) 7.90,85,560 7.58,.86.600
Telephone Expenses 31,40.008 4020274
Subscription and Books & Penodicals 11,892,574 24,26 857
Expected Credit Loss on trade receivables 34073348 28545000
Outsourcing Expenses 20.30.37.300 10.44 68 882
Doctor Fees (Paid on Guarantee money basis) 48.88,02.792 38 37 54,197
Expenditure incurmed for corporate social responsibility (Refer note 27 2) 50.19.846 55,34 905
Miscaflaneous expenses 33.12.586 15.55.130
Hirng Charges 58.70.840 30.12.948
Loss on Sale of Asset §243782 5463023

— 1061052340 854199982
Payments to auditors
a) For audit 6.68,000 6.36.694

b) For taxation matters

¢) For company law matiers

d) For other services

¢) For reimbursement of expenses

6,68,000
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27.2 Expenditure incurred for corporate social responsibllity
Year ended Year ended
31-Mar-22 31:-Mar-21
Average net profit of the company for the last three financial years 25.09.62.488 27 ,56,07, 236
Prescribed CSR Expenditure 50.19,250 55,12,145
Gross amount required to be spent by the company during the vear 50,19.250 55,234,905
Amount spent during the year 1,55,16.181 52,223,973
Cumulative Balance to be spent/(Excess Spent) {2,55.750) 1,02.41.181
CSR project or activity Identifled. Amount spent on Cumulative expenditure upto to the
the projects or reporting period
programs Sub-
heads:
(1) Direct
expenditure on
projects or
programs
(2)0verheads:
Construction of Laboratory fadility for Governament Higher Primary School Supply 25262169
of Black board, Desk and vanous and paying to Total Health, Janaseova Trust and
others
Dunng the year FY20-21. Out of the cumutative balance. of Rs 52,23 73/~ was spent Total Health'
Dunng the year FY21-22. Out of the Javve balance. of Rs 47,298,037/ and Rs. 49.41 000/ was spent “Total Heath'
Dunng the year FY21-22, Out of the dati pent balance, ot of Rs 571,740/ was spent towards purchase of provision flems and
donated to needy pecple
During the year FY21-22, Out of the cumulative unspent balance, W of Rs 50.00.000/-. 50.000/- §2.25.m—mmn'm

Trust 'Society for prevention of Cancerand Vijayanagar Institute of Medical Science’, Bellary respectively

All amounts disclosed above have been spent directly by the Company




28 Income taxes

Year ended Year ended
28.1 Income tax recognised in profit or loss 31-Mar-22 31-Mar-21
Current tax
In respect of the current year 78285117 24843413
7.82,85117 2430413
Deforred tax
In respect of the current year 6.12,16,174 1.04,25 348
Defarred tax reclassified from profit or loss 10 equity (7,56,375) 1390450
6,04,59,789 11815798
Total income tax expense recognised in the current year 13,87,44,916 366,859,211
The Income tax expense for the vear can be reconciled to the accounting profit as follows:
Profit before tax from continuing operatons 44,56,38,014 11,84 64,685
Income tax expense 12,97.69,790 34496916
Effoct of income that is exempt from taxation
Effect of expenses that are not deductible in determining taxable profit and tax (5,14.84673) (06.53.503)
rate dfferonce
Effect of concessions (research and development and other -
alowances) (75) (66)
Effect of unused tax iosses and tax offsets not recognised as -
doferred tax assets
Effoct of previously unrecognised and unused tax losses and 6,04,.58.799 1.18.15.798
deductible temporary differences now recognised as deferred
tax assets
Tax rate difference between income tax rate and MAT -
Adjustments recognised in the curment year in relation to the current tax of prior -
years
Income tax expense recogresed m profit or ioss (relating to - -
continuing operations)
13,87.44 916 36659211

The tax rate used for the 2021-22 and 2020-21 reconciliations above is the corporate tax rate 29.12% and 29.12% payabie by corporate entities in

India on taxable profits under the Indian tax law.




sbow . anus The a7 & based cn the way Ihe cvel operating decsan.
e besed On sarvices, grograpty

maker o o3 within @ for makng o P por o e !
wed any ofher MNAT In which massgement disaggrogsies » company. Based on Ihe *management approsch’ modol the pany has Ihet Its " of @ sirgls 9

sagment which comprise of Heathosre serdce. Acodngly no frther deckawes have been made

BateC 2aTINQS Dev shwe O~ tva 9% ’g
Diute samings per whary E«80C 0w B

30.1 Basic sanwnas Der shar
Tha camings and wiightod sverage number of equity shams usad 0 the calculMion of Basic eamings ca( snare

are as fobows.

Profit foe the year atitutalie 10 cwness of the Company 86580371
usad n e of besic Qs pet sharw A [XIXIRIAN

Wagtted sverade rummbe of eguly STAres S Te puROLes of bawt and diLed eaTings pe MW L] 2.00.45 000 2.96.45 000

0.1 Diuted earmings Der share
The wed e of Slsed oer Whare are 33 foliows.

g used in T af diviad w c 384395840 £865.30.371

n
311 Leasing aranpemwis
The tasikding lease him bean classitied ss Right of Use of Assel, Rested Bulkang - IND AS 118 Finance Leass - 841 Dale 01.01.2008, Ead Dine 31,12 2053 I5% increase in rd for every 3 years, Ry

355950 rent per month from Apr 2006
Imeenst rENes undedying M SEEQEtions unde fRance 16eses ww fixnd & respeciive Donireat dales ranging 1rom B 24N per annum (es & March 31 2021 8 25% ger annum)

1.2 Finance lmase lebilities

Bullding Lease
Particutars e Mimimum Losse Paymeots _____ Present Value of Minimam Lasse
Nt e T one yew TaT0s " 400 134580
Later T 008 yoar S0t ot Mier Bhan Sve yeany 338 40 954 22404104 L0001 95.00.374
Later han Sve yeany

1" 173100 €200 49596724
Less: future fnance chwoes ANRI05 - i e
Prasent vabue of minimumieass peyments DXL SAGS  eIETI

- 1
EIE T 31-Mar-21
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The Compi ,m Yowards provid wom P stale as a cefined contributon reimment beneft fusd for qualiying The fund is by the
reglonal . The by the employes sale P Under these the C 5 required 1o » spedific
mammo’-wum mwmummnnm

mwmmmuﬂwun—mmmmﬂmuh 22602017 (for the year ended March 31, 2021: Rs. 22305130).

The total expense rocogaisad in proft of loss lowseds Employee Stale Insurance ks Rs. 3009368 { for the year ended March 31, 2001: Rs. 3438501)

32.2 Dafined benefit plans

{a) Grtuity

mc«mmmemmmuwsmmmm schame of Ule of Inda (LIC}. The scheme provides for mpsum pRymaent o I vasted
werployees &t retimment, death while In or on of eergloy of a amount equivaient 1o 15 days salary payabie for uach compiied yasr of service. of par themol in excess of &
manths. Vestng cccurs on completion of frv years of service

The | used for the of the ware an follows, Valustion as s

3 I Mar-21
Discount rate(s) S15% 425%
Expocted rate(s) of sa3(y a5 Uniiorm 8.0% Unitoem 8 0%
Aversge ngevity ot retirement age for curment baneficianes of 1he plan (years) tadien Asswed Lives Indan Assured

Mortaity (2012-14) Lives Moraity
Ukimate (2012-14) UBmate

in of profit and loss in respect of these defined benefit plans are as follows

-Mar-22 31-Mar-21
Service cost:
Cutrent sarvica cosl 78,72.126 7541814
Past sarvics cost and (gainiloss from settiements -~ -
Net interest axpunss 1100619 15,77,884
Components of defined banefit costs recognised in profit or loss 89, 72744 51 1107979
Remasgsuramant o the ﬂmm Eabdity:
Retum on plan assels in nal interest 54320 +1.91.008

Actuanial (oaing) / losses ansing from n -1.39.459 4265

Actuanal (gaing) / koeses anising fom ges in -562305 8,79.403
Actuaal (gains) | loeses arising fom sxperancs adustments 3353714 82,7197
Caomgonents of dedned bensiit costs n other income 2557440 &7 74087
Totad (REXIAL) 44,901
The curment senvice cost and e net intevest epenss for the year s ded in the tencfls line feem in the statemest of profit snd ks
The remeasurement of the nel Sfined benafit Eablity is included In cther comprehensive Income.
The amount Included In the balance shest arising froe the entity’s obliaation in respect of its defined banafit olans is ks follows:

31-Mar-22 -Mar-21,
Prasent valie of funded detined benedt oblgason 38395824 31435191
Fair value of plan assets -27.36,500 15,26,142
Funded status 3.36.60.92¢ 29850040
Restrictions on nssel recogaisad
Net liability arising from dufined benefit obligation 124 2.59,50049
Movements in the present value of the defined benefit obliaation are as follows. _HMar-32 31Mar-21
Opening defined benafit obligation 31436191 2,8524 700
Current sarvice cost TET2128 7541814
Interest cost 1182475 1823055
Remeasurerment (ains)iosses:
Actearial gans and losses arising from in -1.39.559 42851
Actsarial gains and losses arising from o "n -562.385 8.79.483
Actearisl gens and lasses arisieq from experience adjusiments 3553714 8271917
Benefils paid -87,55,928 1747578
Clasing defined benafit obligation 36396624 3,14.36,151
Movements in the fair value of the olan assats are as follows, Year enced Year ended

31-Mar-32 31-Mae-21
Opeaning fair value of plan assels 1588142 19.19,55%
Imecest income 91,856 105171
Remeasurement asin {kes):
Retorn on plan assels (excluding amounts Induded In net inerest expense) 54,320 {1.91,008)
Contribusons from B emgloyer 71.11,652 15,00,000
c from olun caric
Banefis paid (81,07.450) (17 A7.578)
Closing fair vaiue of plan assets 27,38.500 15,86, 142

The fsir value of e plan assets are as follows

31-Mar-22 H-Mar-21

Equity invesiments categorised by indusicy tydé:

- Others 2136500 1988162
Total 27,36,500 15,06,542
i ] for the mmam are salary #nd anrison rales. The sensitnvity analyses below have been Calermined based
on bly posabie changes of the resp mtmmdhnponkopm while Rolding all other assumptions constant.
The seasitivity of 1 defned benefit o Inthe ks is
Change i assumption Increase in assumption Decrasss in assumption
JR—C N-Macdt 31-Mar-22 AMar21. -Mar-22 31Mar21
Discount rale +100 basis points +100 basis poknts . -
3.56,38.05) 3,07,32.885
~100 basis ponts -100 basis points . %
3,71,93,845 3,21,76,852
Salary growh rate + 100 basis poknts + 100 bess - -
points 3,69,92,701 3,19,79.261
-100 basis pokts 100 bass points - - [~
1.5617.512 30905172 | <<
Allriticn rate + 100 basis points + 100 bases . -
3,6234,1% 3.12,52,533

oaints
100 b poirds 100 hiss poines . -
3,6564,571 3,16.26,456

mmnbmmoﬂmmmummumvudﬂnmmhlmwmmﬂmmuuuwmmmmmmmmma«urnwnmdm
ancther &s some of the assumptions may be comelaled.

L g the above y analysis, the pvesent valus of P cefined baneft has been wnll crecit method at the end of the rponing penod.
mbmum-muwlbdhmmmmunmmIoul;m\mdmtmwlmum The Maturity omru Mlmdﬁmmmmuzln Synas

There was no change i the and used 0 prapaneg the y analyss from price yesrs,




(b) Leave encashment benefits
nnmmmuﬂq.mmmmmmammmnmmammnmmm.wummmmm 15 days previlege lesve compuled at
the rate of 0ne day for every 20 days of actusl service,

No other Denefits are provided 10 these empoyees.
mmmdmmwm“-mmmmmmm”.mmmummmm
The used for the of the el duations were as follows,

Discount rate(s)

Expecied rate(s) of salary Increase
Average longevity 81 felremant age for cument bensficanes of the plan (years)

of profit and loas in respect of thesa defined beneflit plans are as follows

Sarvice cost

Currem senice cost

Past service cost and {Rsin)ioss from setfiements

Net interest exponse

Components of defined benefit costs recognised in profit or loss

Remeasaremant on the net defined bemefit Eabiity.
Retum on plan assats (exchdie
Actuaris (paies) / loszes arsing from

0 net inlerest

n

Components of defined besalit costs in other nocome
Total
The curent senvice cost and the net interest expense for the year are n the 'E: beneits

Tire e in I statement of profit and loss,

The amount included in the bakance sheet arising trom the sntity's obligation in respect of fts defined banafit plans is as follows:

Uniform 8 0%
Mortuity (2012-14) Lives Modsity
Uttimate  (2012-14) Uitimate

—— e Merdl tMar)
50.25,208 54.99,08
10.48,3%0 13.96,823
0,70 536 R
-5148.767 9.9901
47.70.430 8,63.080
-28,75.599 008,885
28,12,660 §8.22.100

— MMar22  NMardt
Presant valos of funded defined benefit cbiigation 2,83,26,037 2,50.96,82%
Fair valse of plan assets - .
Funded status 28326007 2.50.56 829
Resrictions 0n assel MCoaNied - .
Net liability arising from defined benefit obligation {3 037 2
Movemants in the present value of the defined benefit obligation are as follows. 3 31-Mas21
Opering defined benalk chigation 2838037 250,5%820
Current servioe cost 50.25.208 54,568,001
Intarest cost 10.45.390 13,96,223
Remeasurement (gansiiosses:
Actuarial gains nd 65es srising from in -51.48,787 9.
Actunial gains and losses ansing from changes in 4770430 863,080
Actusrisl gHNSs Rad kases arsing from experwnce adjestiments 287958 9.06,835
Benefits paid -14 57229 +38.52.602
Closing defined benefit obligation 294,981,443 28326037
Movements in the fair value of the plan assets are as follows, Yeur ended Year onded
31-Mae-21
Opening falr value of plan Rssets
Intarest income
Remeasuremeni aain (6s)
Retumn on plan assels In met Imerest
Contribusons from e employer 452,219 355289
< from plan
Benefrs paid 74,557,229 -35,52.692
Closing fair value of plan assets - -
The tar valoe of 1he plan assets are as folows
_31-Mar-22 . AMard)
Equity investments cateoorised by industry fype:
« Others -
Total - -
Significant for the of the defined oblig: e e, exp i and atirition rates. The sesslivity analyses below have baen desermined dbased
on reascnadly possitie chasges of the ) g at the end of the reporng pariod, whise hoiding all other assumgtions consiant
The senstivity of the defined benefit cbiigation 10 chanoes in the weiahted principal SssumoBons &S
Change In assumption Increase In asswnption Decreass in Assumption
3 31-Mart
Discount rate +100 basis points +100 besis points -
2,32,26,787 2,77,51,201
-100 basis paints -100 basts ponts - -
24158198 2,59,30,141
Satary growth 86 + 100 basis ponts + 100 tams - -
ponls 24020973 L47.70.286
<100 basis ponts -100 tasis pokats - .
2,33,42,789 2,78,95,055
Altrition rate + 100 basis points * 100 biss - -
coints 2,3646,522 2.82,64127
~100 basis points -100 bass points - -
2,37,18,268 2,8391,38

mmmmmmmumummmhlmmmﬂMnuhuﬂmmmmhwﬂmmwhmm«m

ancther as some of the assumptions may be comelaled

has besn 4

in e above y snalysis, the present value of the Gsfined benal®

ssing the proy

Wil credit method o the end of the reporing penod.,

h-mmunmwnmmwmmmmnmumm The Maturity profie of the defised beneft obligation is 2 10 3 years

Mumanplum-mmmmmmmmummmmmmnn
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Financial instruments
Capital management
The Company's objectives with respect 10 &3 capial we o dective sccess 10 Capital On & long-lerm basis ot reasonabie rates. and 1o deliver appropnate fisancal reterns. The capital
sructure of the Company consists of equity and net dett detaled in notes 14, 15, 18 and 18,
The C s capitsl and makes adj. o i light of changes 1 sconomec condiiions and he risk of the assets. To o adjust its copilal
stucturg, e Comparny Miy MIeMp! 10 Incur new dabl Of ISSUR New DRSS, MAnaQemant Mvisws the Company's capital Siructun 0n 4n 0ngoing Dasis B Delaves Bt Ihis Rpgroach. Given (he rutstive
size of the Company, |5 reasonable. The following table desorbes the Company’s gearing ratko which & cne of the key metrics used for capitat The( y Is N2t susject 1o aoy
Frposed Cigils mqu
Gearing ratio As at As at
31-Mar-22 31-Mar-21
The aearing retio at end of the mporting period was as follows
g;: ox 838240822 78.0295.724
and tslerces 16,36.27,304 |3.21£¢'!6
Nat Dabe AT 4822618 84,8158,
Total Equity 1561991628 1257696863
Net dedt 1o equity ratio 0.» 0.sz
Dabt is defined as kng-lerm and shor-temm bomowiegs indudng finance lesse cbigaticns
of J
As at As at
Financial assets FMac22 3Mar21
Maasured st amaorised cost
{#) Cash and tank buances 16.96.27.504 13.21 40,85
{b) Other financial assels al amortised cost 417583197 428187130

{c) Other financial sssets o FVTPL - OC1

200,000 5
58,17,10,501 55,8807 587
Al the end of the reporting period, thene are no significant concanirstions of credi nsk for financis! sssets designated ot FYTPL The camying amownt above the ]
expossure 1o il risk for such finkacal sssets.

Particulars Weighted Less than 1 1-3months 3 months to 1 year 1 Year to § years > 65 yoars
average effective month

3MMar-22
No-inmacest arieg 222802337 B8,08 82008 £5740758 19.22 85 369 -
Variabie intorest rale Instrumesnts :
Fuend interest raie instuments

—ZmozNT_ 80eazom BETA0TSS_ 19228539 -
Particulars Weighted Less than 1 1-3months  Smonths o | year 1 Year 105 yeary > 8 years

average effective month

I-Mar-21
Non-inferest bearing 2000.28.460 9.26.00.756 10.20,60.286 16.37.20.102 .
Vrigbie nlerest (aie instruments
Fieod inlerest rte Instruments

_Zomgero  amscges  domses 1630102 :
nwummmnmmmwnmummmmmmmouwmumwmmmumbrm

The € s Audit Commitioe with e C s sk potces and and reviews B adequacy of
umMnmmmmwnmmymmmmumr in &8 Qi 1oke by monileng and g the effect of ha o
risk mAnAGeMen! sysien
Market risk
The Company's activilies expose it p ly 10 the risks of changes in foreign ¥ e rates and inlevest rates.
Forwian curmncy risk managament
The P inated i forsgn ., WX 10 xchangs rala i oG arise Howewver these ae nol considered significant by the management
The camying efthe ¢ 's foreign assets and monetary labiies 31 the end of the reporting peecd e &3 folows
Lisvilities asm | Assats as at

3Mar22 | ItMar2t | 31-Mae-22 1 31
Trade Receivables . . 14477648 1.00.59 920
Imoort Pavaties 24 84 950 35011613 . R
Forelgn currency sensitivity anabysis
The is 1o the Y In USD. The trade receivables comprise of dues from Republc of Tanzania
The folliowng table details the C s walﬁ and » Pe R, agansl US Ooltars. 10% is e senstivity rale used whes mporing foregn y risk ity to key

s of the mmmnmmmmmMymmmmmmnmm
Wmmmmmwuumuunmmmmmm- A positive number below indicates an incresse in proft or equity whens the R,
strengthens 10% against the relevant cumency. For 2 10% weakening of the Rs. against the relevan! cumency, there would be a comparable smpact on the profil or equity, 5 Ihe balances beiow would te
negalive.

Currency USD Impact

Chanoes in assumptions 31-Mar22 31-Mar-21
Impact en proft and lass for the yeer 10% Increase 14,47 785 19,08 992
Impact on fotal oqulty as ot the ond of the regorting penod
Impact on profk and loss for the year 10% decresss 14,47 765 15,08 562
Imosct om Wl eaully 85 31 98 6nd of the reooning sinod
In 30 I's opiion. e y analysis is P of the inherent foreign sk the expx 1 1he end of the reporing pencd does Aol (e I expoGere during the
year
Interest rate risk

Interest rate risk arisas from bomowings. Debis 8l varistie (91es 9xpoeses th company 10 cash flow risk. In the cpinion of the management, nleres! rate risk dunng 1he yes: under o was nol subsiantial
encugh 10 MQUIPe iMeraanticn o hMdging through oF oher




33.5 Credit risk management

mmmumumnwﬂmmu

l n fieanc mnmmmydmwmnummmamuw
gs The

vk The irade mainty of

minimum reserve levels and the Corporale ¢ ae

with gh credit ratings. A oy, e s

to

wmmnwmwmwnwm

mmwmmm mmmam“mmw“mwmmmnnmmmwm Limits and scoving
e d snually. The outstancing with the debioes are reviewed periodically.

risk.

Further, e Comparty & nol sigaificantly to

336 Uguidity risk manapsment
The Company manages liquidity risk by

mantaning adequale
maturity profiles of isancis sssets and latilties. Note 33 8 2 balow 565 out datals of adStional wd:

3361 Liquidity and nterast risk tables
The foliowieg taties detsil Mo company’s

maurity for s

tactisas that ?he

resarves, banking faciities snd reserve Dorowing fsciibes. wMymmmmmwm A0 by malching the
has af ils disposaf 1o further reduce bquicity risk.

with agroec repayment penods. The lables have been drawn up based on the undiscounted

mmummvmmb-nmmommmmmc«mmhmnm The tables include both interest 3 pincps cash fows To the sxlent INK ieest Nows s
fioating rale, the undscounied aMount is darived feom nLarst fite Curves al the end of the Mmporng panod. The contiactiual maturity i hased on the eariest dale on which the Company may be required

% pay
Particulars Weighted Less than 1 13months  Imonths to | year 1 Year to § years >4 yoars
average effective month
interest rate( %)
March 31, 2022
Finance lease tabilty (Fioed inferest rate instruments) 25% 124620 235237 1110422 11881111 54808524
Varistle nisnest rale bomowngs 7.35% 10 2. 05% - 3,00.00,000 ©.00,80.000 45.00,00.000 v
Trade payables/Oter Financial Uabilties (Non-interest bearing) 13,1008.413 205601587 900,000 - (5542.017)
IS 339836834 $29,10422 SEISAIITT asiseser
Particulars Weightad Lass than 1 1-3months 3 months to 1 year 1 Year to § yoars > 5 years
intarest rate( %)
March 31, 2021
Finance lease labiky (Fixed intermst rale nstrumants) 12%9% 1,14,807 215,048 10,1564 $6.00.374 5.47.40.540
Variabie interest rale domowings 7.45% 0 8.50% - 3,00.00,000 9.25,87,500 49.38,00,000 9.43,12.500
Trade peyabies'Omer Finscial Listilties (Non-interest tearing) 13.74,56,553 284897171 £.03,93078 - -
137874 1,51 19,080,031 50,33,09,374 15,3053,043
March 21, 2020
Finance kase Sabilty (Fixed inlerest rate instruments) 12%5% W.17.056 I8 2400830 76,35573 5,19,60 151
Variabie ntensst nrle bomowngs 8.15% 10 350% - 3,00,00,000 $.00,00.000 45.00.00.000 21.00.00.000
Trade cavabsOmar Finsncial Liatiities (Non-interest bearing) 4 107 13,92 99,040 -
4 1,905 38 7 626934613 27,190,181
The carrving amosnts of ihe above A &S folows:
I -Mar-22 2
Finance lease latelty 6,52 40 822 6.8595.724
Varisdie inlerest rte bomowings 57.00.00.000 71.07.00,000
Trade pavables 57.60.873 42881613
64,40.18.498 82,31,87,337
For the purpases of the above tabie, foreign currency llatilties have been computed spplying Spot rates on e Balance Sheet date
3362 Financing facilities
The Company has copss o g faciities as Below. The C expocts o meet its ofher obligations from opersing cash ows and proceeds of maturing fimancial assets.
As at Asat
Particulars 31-Mar-22 a2
Secured bank overdes® fsciity:
- amount used . .
- smount unused 15.00.00,000 140000000
15,00,00,008 14,00,00,000
Secured bank loan fadities with various matunty dates through 10 Dec-2028 and which may be exiesded by mutual sgeement
- amount used 1.02,07 00,000 102,07 20,000
- amount usused 13.83.00.000




e
i ital & R Centre Limited
Notes to the financial statements for the vear ended March 31. 2022
AAmounts in INR unless otherwise stated)
33.8 Fair value of financial assets and financial llabilities that are not measured at fair value (but fair value disclosures are required)
Except as datalled in the following table, the drectors consider thal the carmying amounts of fi ial assets and 19l kaviities gnised in the s . s 8pp their far values.
As at 31 March 2022 As st 31 March 2021
Particulars Carrying Amount Fair Value Amount Fair Value
Financial assets
Financial assets at amortised cost:
Investments (FVTPL) 500,000 5,00,000 5,00,000 5,00,000
Trade receivabies 31,74 00,453 31,74,00,453 31,29,55467 31,2955 487
Cash and cash equivalents 16,3627 304 16,35,27,304 13,21,40,458 13,2140 4%
Other financal assets 95712744 97,12,744 11,3211 11,321
58,12.40,501 58,12,40,501 5 ,07, 7,5
Financial llabiities
Financial iabities held at amortised cost:
Bor £7,00,00,000 57,00,00,000 71,07,00,000 71,07 00,000
Finance lease obligations 6,82,49.922 §,82.49,922 89595724 6,65,66724
Trade payables - - - -
Other financal liabilities 8768573 57,609,573 42891613 42891813
64,40,19,495 64,40,19,485 82,31,87,337 82,31,87,337
31-Mar-22
Particulars Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
Financial assets
Irvastments . . 5,00,000 5,00.000
Trade recaivables 2 . 31,74,00,453 31,74,00,453
Cash and cash equvalents - - 16,36,27,304 16,36,27 304
Cthar financial assets - - 997,112,744 95712744
Total - - 58,12 40,501 1 501
Financial liabilities
Borowings . 57,00,00,000 §7,00,00,000
Finance leass obigations - . 682,49 622 6,02.499822
Trade payables - - - .
Orher financial kablibes - - 57,869,573 5789573
~ = 64,40,19,495 64,40,19,495
31-Mar.21
Particulars Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
Financial assets
Investments - . §.00,000 5,00,000
Trade receivables - - 31,2955 487 31,2955 467
Cash and cash equivalents - - 132140458 132140456
Othar financial assats - - 11,32,11,683 11,32,11.863
Total - - 5 07,587 88 07 587
Financial Gabisties
Borrowings - . 71,07,00,000 71,07 00,000
Finance loase obligations - - 69595724 6,65.56 724
Trade payables - - . -
Cther financial iabiities . . 42691613 4,28.91613
. 82,31,87,337 82,31,87,337




rial Hosoital & R h Centre Limited
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2022
JAmounts in INR uniess othenvwise stated

)

Level 1: Level 1 heerarchy Includes financial nstrumeants measured using quoted prces. This includes listed equity instruments, raded bonds and mutual funds that have quoted price Tha farr vaiue of all equity Instruments
(including bonds) which are traded In the stock exchanges is valued using the ciosing price s at the reporting pericd.

Level 2: The tair vakie of finandal Instruments that are not fraded n & active markat (for example, traded bonds, over-the- counter dervatives) is deterined using valuation techniques which the use of
market dats and rely as litthe 85 possibie on antity-specific estimates. If 3l significant inputs required 1o fair value an instrumant are cbsenvabie, the Instrument is induded n level 2.

Level 3: If ane or mora of the significant inputs is not based on cbservable markel data the instrument Is Included in level 3. This is the case for unlisted equity securiies. CoNtiNQert condsi and indemy assaet
included in level 3.

Valuation technique used to determine fair value
The management belives that the amortised cost aporoxinates the far values

o,
‘)Lnﬁ 3.’:,:




el &R Centre Limited
Notes to the financial statements for the vear ended March 31, 2022
AAmounts in INR unlass otherwise stated)

34 Related party transactions
Jhe Comeany is controlied by ihe folowing angty

Name Tvpe Place of Ownership inerest
incoporation  31-Mar22  31-Mar2l
Apcllc Hospals Enterprise Limited Ulimate holding comoany India $0.00% 90.00%
Name of the Company RF Description Share holding
AR Medical Centres Limited Subsidiary holding >2%
Apolio Health and Lifestyle Ltd Subsidiary holding >2%
Apollo Home Healthcare Ltd Subsidiary holding >2%
Apolio Hospitals (UK) Limited Subsidiary holding >2%
Apollo Hospitals International Lid Subsidiary holding >2%
Apollo Hospitals Singapore Private Limited Subsidiary holding >2%
Apollo Lavasa Health Corporation Ltd Subsidiary holding >2%
Apollo Medicals Pvt Ltd Subsidiary holding >2%
Apollo Multispeciality Hospital Ltd [AGHL] Subsidiary holding >2%
Apollo Nellore Hospitals Limited Subsidiary holding >2%
Apollo Proton Therapy Cancer Centre Pyt Ltd Subsidiary holding >2%
Apollo Rajshree Hospitals Private Limited Subsidiary holding >2%
Assam Hospitals Limited Subsidiary holding >2%
Future Parking Pvt Ltd Subsidiary holding >2%
Imperial Hospital and Research Centre Ltd Subsidiary holding >2%
Medics International Lifesciences Ltd Subsidiary holding >2%
Samudra Health Care Enterprises Limited Subsidiary holding >2%
Sapien Biosciences Private Limited Subsidiary holding >2%
Total Health Subsidiary bolding >2%
Apollo Amrish Oncology Services Pvt Lid Associates holding >2%
Family Health Plan Insurance TPA Led Associates holding >2%
Indraprastha Medical Corporation Ltd Associates holding >2%
Stemcyte India Therapeutics Private Limited Associate holding >2%
ApoKos Rehab Pvt Lad n holding >2%
Apollo Gleneagles PET-CT Pyt Lid v holding >2%
AHLL Dragnostics Limited Step Down Subs holding >2%
AHLL Risk Management Pyt Ltd Step Down Subs holding >2%
Apollo Health and Lifestyle Ltd |step Down Subs holding >2%
Apolio Bangalore Cradle Limited Step Down Subs holding >2%
Apollo CVHF Ltd Step Down Subs holding >2%
Apollo Dialysis Pvt Ltd Seep Down Subs holding >2%
Apollo Pharmacies Ltd Step Down Subs holding >2%
Apollo Specialty Hospitals Pvt Ltd Step Down Subs holding >2%
Apollo Sugar Clinics Ltd Step Down Subs holding >2%
Kshema Health Care Private Limited Step Down Subs holding >2%
Surya Fertility Centre Private Limited Step Down Subs holding >2%
AMG Healthcare Destination Pvt Lid Control holding >2%
Apollo Educational Infrastructure Services Ltd Control holding >2%
Apolio Health Resources Ltd Control holding >2%
Apollo Healthco Ltd Control holding >2%
Apollo Infrastructure Projects Finance Company Pyt Lid Control holding >2%
Apollo Med Skills Lid Control holding >2%
Apolio Reach Hospitals Enterprises Ltd Control holding >2%

Apallo Shine Foundation Control holding >2%




rial ital & Re h Centre Limited
Notes to the financial statements for the vear ended March 31, 2022
A{Amounts in INR uniess othervise stated)

Apollo Sindoori Hotels Ltd Control holding >2%
Apallo Telehealth Services Pyt Ltd Control holding >2%
Apollo Teleradiclogy Pyt Ltd Control holding >2%
Emedlife Insurance Broking Services Lad Control holding >2%
Faber Sindoori Management Services Pvt Lid Control holding >2%
HealthNet Global Ltd Control holding >2%
Indian Hospitals Corporation Ltd Control holding >2%
Indo- National Ltd Control holding >2%
Keimed Pvt Ltd Control holding >2%
Kei Rajamahendri Resorts Pvt Ltd Control holding >2%
KEI-RSOS Petroleum and Energy Pvt Lid Control holding >2%
Lifetime Wellness Rx International Lid Control holding >2%
Matrix Agro Pvt Lid Control holding >2%
Medvarsity Online Ltd Control holding >2%
PCR Investments Ltd Control holding >2%
PDR Investments Pvt Ltd Control holding >2%
Wadi Surgicals Pvt Ltd Control holding >2%
Apollo Hospitals Education Research Foundation control
Apollo Hospitals Educational Trust control
Apolio Institute Of Medical Sciences And Research control
Adeline Pharma Private Limited control
Dhruvi Pharma Private Limited - Ahmedabad control
Focus Medisales Private Limited control
Kurnool Hospital Enterprise Limited control
Lucky Pharmaceuticals Private Limted - New Delhi control
Medihauxe Healthcare Private Limited control
Neelkanth Drugs Private Limited - New Delhi control
Palepu Pharma Private Limited - Chennai control
Sanjeevani Pharma Distributors Private Limited control
Srinivasa Medisales Private Limited - Bangalore control
Vardhman Pharma Distributors Private Limited - Bangalore control
Vasu Agencies HYD Private Limited control
Vasu Pharma Distributors HYD Pvt Lid control
Vasu Vaccines & Speciality Drugs Private Limited control
Medibauxe International Pyt Ltd - Chennal control
Medihauxe Pharma Pvt Lid - Hyderabad control
Medihauxe Distributors Pvi Ltd - Mumbal control
ATC Pharma Pyt Lad control
Shree Amman Pharma Pt Lid control
Lifeline Pharma Pvt Lid control
AH Medired 1 tive Sol Pvt Lud Holding holding >2%
Adventure Trails India Pvt Ltd Holding holding >2%
Apollo Advanced Manufacturing Services Pvt Lid Holding holding >2%
Apollo Clinical Excellence Solutions Ltd Holding holding >2%
Apoallo Energy Company Ltd Holding holding >2%
Apollo Telemedicine Networking Foundation Holding holding >2%
AVV Turbines Pvt Ltd Holding holding >2%
Bridge Promoters Pvt Lid Holding holding >2%
Chevella Farms Lid Holding, holding >2%
Citadel Agro Pvt Ltd Holding holding >2%
Citadel Research and Solutions Ltd Holding holding >2%
Duraent Lifesciences LLP Holding holding >2%

Dynavision Ltd Holding holding >2%




Imperial Hospitsl & Research Centre Limited
Notes to the financial statements for the vear ended March 31, 2022

Elixir Communities Pvt Ltd Holding holding >2%
Everest Infra Ventures (India) Pvt Ltd Holding holding >2%
Frister Foods Pvt Lid Holding holding *2%
Garuda Energy Pvt Lid Holding holding >2%
Gas Transmission India Pt Ltd Holding holding >2%
Happ Tech Pvt Ltd Holding holding >2%
Health Care (India) Ltd Holding holding >2%
Helios Holdings Pvt Ltd Holding holding >2%
Helios Strategic Systems Lid Holding holding >2%
Iris KPO Resourcing (India) Pvt Ltd Holding holding >2%
Kalpatharu Enterprises Pvt Ltd Holding holding >2%
Kalpatharu Infrastructure Development Company Pyt Lid Holding holding >2%
Kar Auto Pvt Ltd Holding holding >2%
Kar Motors Pvt Ltd Holding holding >2%
KEI-RSOS Shipping Pyt Ltd Holding holding >2%
Keiagrmed Pt Ltd Holding holding >2%
LNG Bharat Pvt Ltd Holding holding >2%
Managed Information Services Pt Lad Holding holding >2%
Munoth Industries Ltd Halding holding >2%
Obul Reddy investments Pvt Ltd Holding holding >2%
Olive & Twist Hospitality Pvt Ltd Holding holding >2%
PPN Holdings (Alfa) Pvt Ltd Holding holding >2%
PPN Holdings Pvt Ltd Holding holding >2%
PPN Power Generating Company Pvt Lid Holding holding >2%
Preetha Investments Pyt Lid Holding holding >2%
Prime Time Recrestions Pvt Lad Holding holding =2%
Saffron Solutions Pvt Ltd Holding holding >2%
Searchlight Health Pvt Ltd Holding holding >2%
Sindya Aqua Minerale Pyt Ltd Holding halding >2%
Sindya Infrastructure Development Company Pyt Lid Holding holding >2%
Sindya Properties Pvt Lud Holding holding >2%
Sindya Securities & Investments Pvt Lid Holding holding >2%
Stephan Design & Engineering Lid Holding holding 2%
TMR Design Co LLP Holding holding >2%
TRAC Eco&Safari Park Pvt Ltd Holding holding >2%
Trac Inddia Pvt Ltd Holding holding >2%
Vasumati Spinning Mills Pt Ltd Holding holding >2%
Vikarsh Strategic Investments Pyt Ltd Holding holding >2%
Viswambhara Nutriville Pvt Ltd Holding holding >2%
Wandering Mind Developers Pyt Ltd Holding holding >2%
Askari Motors Pt Ltd Holding holding >2%
Indra Chemical Manufacturing Pyt Lid Holding holding >2%
Volano Entertainment Pyt Lid Holding holding =2%
Associated Electrical Agencies Firms

Apex Agencies Firms

Apex Agencies - Hyderabad Firms

P Ol Reddy & Sons Firms

Vaishnavi Constructions Firms

DOT Publishers Firms

Spectra Clinical Laboratory Firms

Anantara Management and Technical Services LLP LLP

Rocktown Developers LLP Lp

Greenridge Hotels and Resorts LLP Lp

Fresenius Intraven LLP L

Parth thi Air Conditioned Tourists LLF LLP




Imperial Hospital & Ressarch Centre Limited
Notes to the financial statements for the vear ended March 31, 2022
{Amounts in INR unigss othecwise stated)

Blue Streak Land Holdings LLP

Shriy Fashions International LLP
Together Against Diabetic Foundation Trust
B. R. Enterprises

Care Pathology

IRM Trust

LLP
L
Trust
Firms

Trust



t | & Ry h Centre Limited
Notes to the financlal statements for the vear ended March 31, 2022
{&mounts in INR unless oterwise stated)

A7, 535
1,70,00,235
342
T tions with related . YTO Mar 22 Closing Bal As at Closing Bal As at
| -
- Lo, 31Mar2z 31 Mar2]
Apollo Hopsitsls Enterpirse Limited (AHEL)
1 Deputation Staff Charges Paid (13,28,414.00) {14,08,77 816) (24,69 86 346)
2 Laboratory income Recenved (1,24,76 563 00)
3 Rembursamant of expenses pad 1,13,29,794.56
4 Reird it of E Racei (1,46,16,198.00)
8 Interest on Term Loan -
Purchase of Vacchation 10,40,02,075.70
] Purchases of Madicines for the IPIOP Services 1,18,54,301.65
7 Repayment of term loans avaled -
-] Amount | ds the sales 1o IPIOP patients (64,66,06,158.09)
9 Cotecions made and remitted on beha¥ of AHEL 87,29,23,783,00
10 Colecsons made on behall of iImpenal hospitals and remittances {16,17,641.00)
12 Asset Purchases 20,44,200.00
13 Out Patient Service Bill (3,57,65,508.00)
Apolioc Hospitals International Limited (AMHIL)
Reimbursement of axpanses paid -
Agolio Sugar Clinic Ltd {ASCL) (9,14,035) (14,16 673))
Cut Pavent Service Amount paic 96,50,760.50
Occtors Payment Rembursement received (27,414,650 .00)
Rent Receivec (679,187 98)
Lab !/ Ragiology Revenue recetved (23,07 796 83)
Alllance Dental care Limited (ADCL) (73.69.712) (12.93.497)
OP Service Amount Payable 161.50,275.00
R of £ R .
Amourt Pald towards the cutstanding smourt 1.00.74 060 00
Apollo Sindoori Hotels Limited (ASHL) (80 92 428) {1.01.62 087},
Accommodslion charges paic 1,80,44 612.00
Food & Beverage Comprehersive Conlract Amount Pad 3,63,06,306.02
Food & Beverage charges collacted on behall of ASHL .
Reimbursement of expenses paid -
Reimbursemant of Expanses Receved -
Faber Sindoori Manaaement Services Private Limited (FSMSPL) (1,25,33,882) (1,24,47.327)
Hon 5 G 15ive A t Paid 794,97 44200
Rermbursament of expenses pad 93,991.00
Lifetime Weliness RX international Ltd (8,13,850) (8,339,040
Advectisemant charges pakl -
Counseling charges paid 1.63,980.00
Reimby of E R
Matrix Agro Pvt Ltd (4,32,836) 15,100
Power charges payable 3,78.67.926 00
Family health plan TPA Limited
n Patient Service Income 20,19,68,224 58 235862278 3,01.16 446
Qut Patiart Servwce Incoms B8,58,0687.00 k
\['%
Apolio Bangalore Cradie Limited (ABCL) N <




rial Hospital & R Cantre Limited
Notes to the financial statements for the vear ended March 31, 2022
{Amounts in INR unlegs ofhecwise stated)

Cut Patiert Servica Income

Apolio family benevolent fund trust
Company's Contribution 1o the rust fund
Y ) il d and remitted to the trust”

Total Health
CSR Expenditure incumed

AHLL Disgnostics Uimited
Laboratory incoms

Apolio Health and Lifestyle Ltd.
OF income (Receivable)

8,69,562.00
4,77,066.00

95,70,037.00

395482

(2,05.859)

395482




[ il & Ry h Centre Limited
Notes to the financlal statements for the vear ended March 31, 2022
{Amounts in INR unless otherwise stated)

APOLLO GROUP - Company Wise Closing Balance Opening Balance

Hospital Gv ApoIIc Hopaials EMerpiree Limied (AHEL) 12,03.22.375) 11,98.71.662)]

U[VENONRWN :500«00&0)“-%

3
s

TV NDREON

Staff Charges Paid 1.16,17,156.00
Received

Reimbursement of expenses paic (2.78,054.80)
of E 265,802.00
Imerest an Term Loan -

Repayment of term loans availed

Amount b rds fe sales (o IP/OP patients

Coflections made and remitied on behalf of AHEL -
Coflections made on behalf of imperial hospitals and remittances -
Paymant made towarnds the outstanding amount (1,62,32 930 68)
Asset Purchases 29,44 200,00
Qut Patiert Service Bib (3,27.00,020 00}

Repayment of term loans avallec

Amount payable towards the y sales 1o IPIOP patients

Cobections made and remittec on behal! of AHEL

Collections made on bahalf of imperial hospitals and ramittiances -
made the 9 amourt -

Apolio Hopsitals Enterpirse Limited (AHEL) 5,92.580 (51,13.661)|
Deputation Staff Chargas Paic

Laboratory Income Recsived

Rembursement of expenses paid {1.70,203 00)
Remoursement of Expenses Received -
interest on Term Loan

Purchases of Medcines for the IPIOP Services -
Repayment of term laans avaled

Amountt payable towards the phamacy sales to IPOP patents

Cotectons made and remitted on behalf of AHEL -
Cobactons made on behalf of i t itals &g {1587 335 00)
Payment made towards the outstanding amount {39.48.703 00|

Apollo Hopsitals Enterpirse Limited (AHEL) 70.70.084 24,54,824
Deputaton Statt Charges Paid {43.82.191 00}
Labaratory income Recewed -
Rembursemaent of expenses pad -
Remd L of Exp R {64,55,224.00)
interest on Term Loan

Purchases of Mecicines for the IP/OP Services -
Repayment of term lcans avaded

Amourt payadle towards the phamacy sales to IP/OP patiertts

Colections made ard remitted on benall of AHEL

Colectons made on behaslf of imperial hosprals and remittances -
Paymant made towards the cutstanding amount (62,22,145.24)

TRV ND AN

y Agolio atals E irse Limited (AHEL)
Deputason Staff Charges Pad 13,81,21,289) (24,02 80,678}
Laboratory incoma Received
Reé of expenses paid 93,97 648.18
Reimb nol E R -
Intecest on Term Loan
Purchases of Vacdination 104002078 70
Purchases of Medicines for the IP/OF Services 1,16.54,301 85
Repaymant of tarm loans availed
Amount cards he sales 10 1P/OP patients {64 .56 06,158 08)
Colections made and remitied on bebal of AMEL 87.29.38.763 00
Colections made on baha of imperial hospitals and remitiances -
Pary made the ] -




! &R ch Centre Limited

Notes to the financial statements for the vear ended March 31, 2022
[Amounts in INR unless ofereise stated)

Apolio Is Ei irse Limited (AHEL) 7771008 1,06.28.179

1 Deputation Statf Charges Paid (43,82.191.00)

2 Laboeatory Income Received (75,50 867 00)

3 Reimbursement of expenses pad -

4 Rei nent of Exp Recer (79.87,505.00)

5 Imterest on Term Loan

8 Purchases of Medicines tor the IPIOP Services

7 Repayment of term loans avaled

8 Amount [ rds the p sales 1o IP/OP patients

] Colections made and remitted on behalf of AHEL .

10 Colecsons made on behalf of imperial hosprals and remitiances {30,506 00)

1 Paymert made towards the outstanding amount 2353797845

12 Out Pasent Servics Bl (7.20,938.00)
Sheshadriow Apolio Enterpirse Limited (AHEL) 30,322,176 50,15,851

1 Deputation Staff Charges Paid (43,82,191.00)

z Labaratory Income Recaived (49,25 ,895.00)

3 Rembursement of expenses paild 23,80,204.00

4 Rembursement of Expenses Recaved 92,333.00

5 Interest on Term Loan

6 Purchases of Medicines for the IPIOP Services

7 Repayment of tarm loans avaied

L) Amount payabk ards the ph sales 10 IP/OP pstients

-] Collections made and remitted on behalf of AHEL -

10 Collections made on behall of Imperad hospitais and remittances -

11" Paymant made rds the 9 (91,54 875.19)

12 Out Patient Secvice Bill (3,35.850.00)

N /7
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&
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| Hospital & Centre Limited

Notes to the financial statements for the vear ended March 31, 2022
AAmounts in NR yriess ohecaise stated)

35 Lease
351 The Company as lessee

Leasing Amrangement
Shon Tarm Lease -The company has slected not 1o recognise fght-of-use assats and ase EaDILeS for short torm leases of real estate propertes that have & lease teem of 12 months

or less. The y gnises the lease pay associated with these leases as an expense on a straight-ine basis over the lease term,
Pay Q! d as an Year ended Year ended
Particulars 3 31.-Mar.21
Mirimu: legse payments 3,21,82.084 2.64,89,758

There are no non cancelable operatng leasa commitments for the Company
36 Commitments

Particulars 31-Mar.22 31-Mar-21
Estimated of cor 3 to be d on capral sccount and n 2434950 15011613
37 Contingent liabilities
Particulars 31-Mar.22 31-Mar-21
(a) Claims ag he nat dedged as debt .
o) Omer monay for which the company is contingengy liable
Bank 570,680,954 5.70.68,994
Bank Guarantees-Others 2.00,000 44,00,000
Letter of credit 24,84 950 35011613

74
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b rial b ital & R h Centre Limited
Notes to the financial statements for the vear ended March 31, 2022
SAmounts in INR ynless otherwise stated)

Additional Regulatory Reporting
{A)CWIP Schedule
AMOUNT IN CWPN)RAPMO’”WZOZI
owie Lass Than 1 year 1-2 years 2.3 years More than 3 years Total
Project In progress £0,84,000 . . 60,84,000
[Projects porardy suspended Z . - .
Total 60,84,000

AMOUNT IN CWIP FOR A PERIOD OF 31 Mar 2022

cwip Less Than 1 year 1-2 years 2-3 years More than 3 years Total
[Project In progress - . ;
Projects p dy suspended
Total =2
(B)Ratios as per Sch, W
Particulers FY 2022 FY 2021

Current Ratio - CA/CL 099 077
Debt Equtiy Ratio{Total dedt/ Share holders Equity) 041 0.48
Debt Service coverage ratio- (PAT+dep+Non cash + Int «Adj. /int +Annual
Instaliment) 257 172
Return on Equity-( Net Income/Avg. Share holders equity) P e
Invantory Turnower ratic - (COGS/Avg, Inventory} = 1913 B—
Days sales in Inventory|Days) | 19 26

691 5.29
Trade recenables tumaver ratio-(Net Credit Sale/Avg Trade Recevable) = et
Receivable Turnover in days | 52| 68
Credators Turnover ratio-(Net credit purchase/Avg. creditors) b ll.l91 6438
Payable Tumover in days | ~ 5 56
Net capitad turmover ratio - (Net sale/ Net Working capital) 444 13
Return on investment [EBIT/Sh, Holder fund+ Long term debr) 25% 10%
ROCE-  (E8IT/Capnal Employed) 20% 9%
Net peofit ratio 10% a%

38 Dues to Micro, Small and Medium-Scale Enterprises
The Mnistry of Micro, Small and Medium Enterprses nas issued an office memarandum dated 26 August 2008 wivch recommends that the Micro and Small Enterprises should mention
0 Meir comespendence with is customers the Entreprenaurs Memorandum Number as allocated after Nling of the Memorandum  Accordingly, the disclosure in respect of tha amounts
paysble to such emerpeses as ot March 31, 2020 has been made in the financial staternents based on information recewed and avalable with the Company. Further n view of the
managemant. the mpact of irkerest, il any, st May be payable n dance with the o ons of the Micxo, Smal and Mecium Enterprises Development Act, 2008 (The MSMED
Act') s not expected to be materal The Company has not recawed any claim for nterest from any suppler

As at 31st As at 31st Mar As at 3st
Particulars Mar 2022 2021 Mar 2020
Rs.
The amounts remansng unpaid 10 micro and small suppliers as at the end of the year
Principal

. 452 80370 3,80.86.796
- Intarest %




